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STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION FILING:

* Honorable T. Nelson Parker, Commissioner
Bureau of Insurance

Blanton Building

Richmond, Virginia

Dear Sir:

RE: Filing of Proposed Rates, Miniium Premiums, and
Rating Values for Workmen’s Compensation Insurance to be-
come effective July 1, 1963, on New arid Renewal Business
only. - .

On behalf of all members and subseribers of the Bureau,
‘there is filed herewith, for the consideration and approval of
the State- Corpomtlon Commission, a schedule of revised rates,
minimum: premmm and rating values for workmen’s com-

sati become effective July 1, 1963 on new
88 0111&» The revised rates have been cal-
ce. withi the countrywide: ratemaking pro-
hie catastrophe charge.: ‘which is covered in
‘the next para raph, and represent an average increase due to
-experience of 8.7%: in premium level from the level of Virginia
rates which became ieffective July 1, 1962. By mdustry group
the changes in nqmmm level mdmated by experience are:

1§ 4.7% increase, Contractmg 2.6%. increase, All
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Section 38.1-2562(3) of the Virginia Insurance Laws pro-
vides that in the: making of rates due consideration shall be
given to catastrophe hazards. In previous years, the rates as
filed have included a general elément of $.01 for each classifica-
tion to provide for sich catastrophe hazards whether of a
traumatic or dis¢ase nature. This procedune is followed coun-
trywide and is believed by theiéarriers to bethe most reasona-
ble and eguitable approach to a catastrophe charge. However,
the Commission has shown a teluctance to. approve the proce-
dure in regent yegrs because of its effect on the low-rated classi-
fications. To conform with thedesirés of the:Commission, while
firmly believingithe (01 flat charge tobe the preferable method,
the allowance for catastrophe in the proposed rates has: been
expressed as @ percentage of | 1.3 calenlated to produce the same
amount of premium overall as would be realized by the .01
charge. (Page 1, panagnm”ph 3iof National Council’s letter.dated
April'1,1963.) : -
The %“asic rﬂat" -f’*usedl m ﬁhe déterinination of the mevised

‘ strial Cominission of Virginia
ed by the carrfers under the:
data movemng poli-
d from Matech I, 1959:
A  § 61 @né{ expiring throug’h Feb-
page ‘Zt Ej}, ;{ 1962 + the ,“GMe; of Three

tween J anuary
through: Decembet 31,
The standard! vr_ t

representmg the most important o
The memorandum is offered P
Refiling of Proposed Changes in 1}
Payroll Limitation and Rate qu_

‘This filing mcludes a refiling of pi
Virginia HException:to Sections VI
mannal to provide: -

(1) 'The substitution of $300 per W k pa
heu f the present $1 Virgi
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(2) For executive officers, a maximum individual payroll
of $300 per week in lieu of the present $100 per week and a
minimum individual payroll of $50 per week in lieu of the
present $30 per week. (Virginia Exceptions ‘‘Executive Of-
ficer’’ — Rule 6, Section XIII)

The attached filing memorandum sets forth the rule changes
and the reasons therefor. Also, included is a Transition
Program.

Since the proposed change in payroll limitation is not in-
tended to change the premium to be received by the carriers,
the revised rates have been adjusted in accordance with proce-
dure set forth in Exhibits V, V-A and V-B of the National
Council memorandum. These adjustments are based on Vir-
ginia payroll audit data secured from the carriers. The
Transition Program is intended to eliminate any hardship
cases which might arise in the Transition from the $100 to
$300 basis.

Revision of Minimum Premium Formula

Included in this filing are revised Minimum Premiums based
on the proposed rates and a revised Minimum Premium For-
mula. The present formula established in 1927 is 15 times
rate plus expense constant. Because of the change in the
value of the dollar, the formula is inadequate and it is pro-
posed that the formula be revised to twenty five times the rate
plus expense constant, (Page 3 of National Council Memoran-
dum) subject to the following ceiling:

First year — the muumum premium shall not be greater
than 1.25 x (15 x proposed manual rate for first year + ex-
pense constant)..

Second year — the minimum premium shall not be greater
than 1.50 x (15 x proposed manual rate for second year + ex-
pense constant).

Third and subsequent years — no limitation.

page 3 1 Continuation of $10.00 Expense Constant

This filing contemplates continuation of the $10.00 Expense
Constant previously approved to apply July 1, 1963, on new
and renewal business only.
Specific Disease Elements

The present specific disease elements are continued except

e
Lt
halls
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- for adjustment for the effect of the change in payroll limita-
tion as described in Exhibit IV of the National Councﬂ
Memorandum.

Premium Discounts and Retrospective Rating Values

The present Virginia Premium Discounts and Retrospective
Rating Values are continued without change.

We respectfully request that this filing be approved for
Virginia as of the date and in the manner herein proposed.

Respectfully filed,
E. B. CADMUS

EEC:dvz , Manager.

Enclosures :
* 1. Schedule of Proposed Rates, Minimum Premiums,
ete. .

2. Filing Memorandum — Proposed Changes in Payroll
Limitation Rule anitial mnd Transition Program.

3. Letter from I Couneil on_Compensation In-

%) 3 and Memorandum covering Stand-

ard Rate Making Procedure as applied to the determination
of Virginia Manual Rates.

CC: Mr. Norman S. E],ho‘ﬁt Contisel, State Corporation
Commission, :

Mr. F. E. Perrin, Industrial Comm*lssmn of Virginia..

Mr. M. Wallace Moncure, Jr., Attorney; Richmond, Virginis:.

Mr. BR. D. Heltzmann, Asst. Gen Mgr., National Council on
Comp. Ins.
~ Mr. R. H. Kallop, Actuary, National Couneil on Compensa-
tion Ins.

* Enclosure #1 above is included as Exhibit No. 1 filed
with the application.

Eneclosures #2 and #3 above are included in Exhibit No.:1
filed as evidence,
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* * * * *
AT RICHMOND, APRIL 5, 1963
APPLICATION OF

WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION INSPECTION
RATING BUREAU OF VIRGINIA

CASE NO. 16310

For revision of workmen’s compensation rates.

ON APRIL 4, 1963 came Workmen’s Compensation Inspec-
tion Rating Bureau of Virginia and filed on behalf of its mem-
bers and subscribers, comprising all insurance companies
licensed to write workmen’s compensation insurance in this

“State, proposed revisions of workmen’s compensation rates,

minimum premiums, rules, regulations and procedures for
writing workmen’s compensation insurance in Virginia under
and pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 30.1 of the Code and re-
quested approval of the Commission thereof to be effective
July 1,1963: and it appearing that a hearing will be necessary
before acting upon said filing and that notice of the time
and place should be given. :

IT IS ORDERED:

(1) That this proceeding be instituted to investigate and
determine: (a) Whether the rates proposed to be charged in
this State for workmen’s compensation insurance as set forth
in the filing made by the Workmen’s Compensation Inspection
Rating Bureau of Virginia are excessive, inadequate, or
unfairly discriminatory, and (b) Any other matter which may
be the proper subject of investigation; assigned Case No.
16310, docketed and set for hearing at 10:00 A.M. on May 7,
1963 in the Courtroom of the State Corporation Commlssmn,
Blanton Building, Richmond, Virginia, at which time and place
the applicant and all parties in interest desiring to be heard
shall appear and present such facts and file such data relevant
to the matters involved as may be desired;

(2) That applicant publish notice of the time and place of
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such hearing and the substance of the proposed revisions of

the rates, minimum premiums, rules, regulations
page 5 ] procedures and the place or places where the exact

proposed rates, minimum premiums, rules, reg-
ulations and procedures may be seen by any person in in-
terest in at least one newspaper of general circulation pub-
lished in the Cities of Richmond, Norfolk, Roanoke, Winchester,
Lynchburg, Danville, Fredericksburg, and Alexandria at least
once a week for two successive weeks beginning at least ten
days prior to the set for hearing, and that due proof of
such publication be made and filed herein, which notice shall
be in substantially the following words and figures:

“NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

‘‘Notice is hereby given to employers carrying workmen'’s
compensation insurance under the Workmen’s Compensation
Act and to the public that Workmen’s Compensation Inspec-
tion Rating Bureau of Virginia, on behalf of its member and
subseriber insurers, has applied to the State Corporation
Commission for permission to make certain changes and
modifications in rates, minimum premiums, rules and regula-
tions to become effective July 1, 1963, on new and renewal
business. These proposals involve increases in 327 instances,
decreases in 251 instances, and no change in 92 instances and
an over-all increase in rates due to experience and provision
for catastrophe of 5%, being as increase of 6.1% for the
manufacturing classifications, an increase of 3.9% for con-
tracting classifications, and an increase of 5.3% for all other
classifications.

‘‘The exact workmen’s compensation rates, minimum pre-
miums, rules, and regulations, increases, and decreases may
be seen at the Bureau of Insurance, 801 Blanton Building,
Richmond, Virginia, and copies of the filing may be seen at
the office of the Workmen’s Compensation Inspection Rating
Bureau of Virginia, 207 Broad-Grace Arcade, Richmond, Vir-

a.
“The State Corporation Commission has set for hearing

"(Case No. 16310), the proposed rates, minimum premiums,

rules and regulations in the Court room of the State Corpora-
tion Commission, Blanton Building, Richmond, Virginia, be-
ginning at 10:00 A.M. on May 7, 1963, at which time and place
all persons or corporations in interest may appear and be

heard.
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“WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION INSPECTION
RATING BUREAU OF VIRGINIA”

and
(3) That an attested copy hereof be sent to the applicant,
207 Broad-Grace Arcade, Richmond, Virginia, National Coun-
cil on Compensation Insurance, 200 East 42nd Street, New
York 17, New York, M. Wallace Moncure, Jr., Mutual Build-
ing, Richmond, Virginia, counsel for the applicant, the In-
dustrial Commission of Virginia, Virginia Manu-
page 6 ] facturers Association, 300 West Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia, Frederick T. Gray, State
Planters Bank Building, Richmond, Virginia, counsel for Vir-
ginia Manufacturers Association, and to the Bureau of
Insurance.

A True Copy
Teste: WILLIAM C. YOUNG
Clerk of State Corporation Commission.

. page 7 }
* * * * *

APPLICATION OF

WORKMEN'’S COMPENSATION INSPECTION
RATING BUREAU OF VIRGINIA

_ CASE NO. 16310
For revision of workmen’s compensation rates.

PRESENT:
COMMISSIONERS
RALPH T. CATTERALL (Chalrman)

H. LESTER HOOKER
(Chairman Catterall presiding)

APPEARANCES:

M. Wallace Moncure,
Counsel for Applicant

Frederick T. Gray,
Counsel for Virginia Manufacturers Assoclatlon,
Intervener

Norman 8. Elliott,
Counsel for the Commission
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Date of Hearing
May 7, 1963

page 8 ]
* * * * *

Mr. Moncure: Yes. There are a few minor things that have
to be gone into, and the opposition has something new.

Chairman Catterall: I understand that they have something
logical. Just hand your notices to the bailiff, and we will hear
from the opposition.

Commissioner Hooker: Mr. Moncure wants to make his state-
ment.

Chairman Catterall: Do you want to make your statement
first?

Mr. Moncure: I would like to make it, and get it into the
record. )

If the Commission please, the filing under consideration to-
day covers the annual adjustment of workmen’s compensation
rates based on the latest available Virginia experience compiled
by the Industrial Commission.

The standard ratemaking procedure has been used by the

National Council on Compensation Insurance in
page 9 1 the calculation of the proposed rates, with the ex-

ception involying the catastrophe charge and since
these procedures have been considered and accepted by H;e
Commission in previous annual revisions it is suggested that
our evidence in respect thereto be accepted in a documentary
manner. We will offer very complete exhibits covering the
various steps in the ratemaking procedure but for the Commis-
sion’s enlightenment, I should like to summarize these steps
and state for the record the changes in premium level indicated
for the various industry groups:

1. Average changes in premium levels were calculated for
the three industry groups, Manufacturing, Contracting, and
All Other, based on the Virginia experience for policies becom-
ing effective during the period from March 1, 1959 to Febru-
ary 28, 1961 and expiring through February 28, 1962, plus the
experience of Three Year Fixed Rate Policies becoming effec-
tive between January 1, 1957 and December 31, 1958 and ex-
: piring through December 31, 1961.
page 10 } 2. Distribution of the industry group changes

in premium levels was effected among the various
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classifications within each group as indicated by the Virginia
experience for policies becoming effective during the period
from March 1, 1950 to February 28, 1961 and expiring through
February 28, 1962, plus the experience of Three Year Fixed
Rate Policies becoming effective between January 1, 1957 and
December 31, 1958 and expiring through December 31, 1961.

3. A rate level adjustment factor of 1.033, based on Virginia
experience for the twelve month calendar period ending June
30, 1962 was utilized.

4. Change in correction for off-balance due to the experience
rating plan of 1.010 based on the latest available data submitted
by the Industrial Commission has been applied.

5. An expense allowance of 32.0 per cent including 2.5 per
cent for profit and contingencies and continuation of the re-

duction from 3.0 to 2.5 in the tax item to reflect the
page 11 } credit against maintenance fund taxes ordered by

the Industrial Commission of Virginia has been
used. We have been advised by the Industrial Commission that
this credit will be continued. _

The changes in average premium level by industry group
due to experience and exclusive of a catastrophe allowance are:

Manufacturing 4.7 per cent average increase
Contracting 2.6 per cent average increase
All Other 3.9 per cent average increase
Overall 3.7 per cent average increase

Now, as to the need for a catastrophe charge, the Virginia
Insurance laws make express provision, Section 38.1-252 (3)
providing that in the making of rates due consideration shall be
given to catastrophe hazards in addition to due consideration
to past and prospective loss experience. In the past the rates
as filed have included a general element of $.01 per One Hun-
dred Dollars of payroll for each classification to provide for

such catastrophe hazards whether of a traumatic or
page 12 ] disease nature. This procedure is followed coun-

trywide and is believed by the carriers to be the
most reasonable and equitable approach to a catastrophe
charge. However, the Commission has shown a reluctance to
approve the procedure in recent years. To conform with the
desires of the Commission, while firmly believing the .01 flat
charge to be the preferable method, the allowance for catastro-
phe in the proposed rates has been expressed as a percentage
of 1.3 calculated to produce the same amount of premium over-
all as would be realized by the .01 charge.



Virginia Manufacturers Association 11
v. Workmen’s Compensation Inspection Rating Bureau of Va.

The refiling of the catastrophe charge expressed as a per-
centage will produce the following changes in premmm level,
including the changes due to experience.

Manufacturing

Contracting

All Other

Overall
6.15 per cent increase
3.9 per cent increase
5.3 per cent increase
5.0 per cent increase

There also has been filed a proposal to change the limitation

on the amount of payroll used for premium com-
page 13 ] putation purposes from One Hundred Dollars to

Three Hundred Dollars per week. The records of
the Commission will show that the payroll limitation rule
changes were initially filed in Virginia as a part of the annual
rate revision in 1958 and following hearing on May 1, 1958, the
changes were disapproved by the Commission. Since that time
the program has been favorably received in many States and
a Transition Program has been introduced to provide an or-
derly and equitable transition from the One Hundred to Three
Hundred Dollar basis. From the Virginia standpoint, payroll
audit data has been secured from the carriers in substantial
volume so the effect of a changeover from One Hundred to
Three Hundred Dollars can be accurately measured.

Cllzairman Catterall: You mean Three Hundred Dollars a
week {

Mr. Moncure: That is where the cut-off comes, and the rea-
son for that is shown in the evidence. Here you will find a man

working only forty hours per week, and making

page 14 1 One Hundred and Sixty Dollars, and they only pay

on the Hundred Dollars, whereas, the chap across

the street, with forty hours of exposure, and there are many

1ndustr1es where the supervisors get that rate in salary, but

they will have to pay the same rate as the man pays across the
street for the man making only Twenty-Five Dollars a week.

Chairman Catterall: Is compensation based on his total?

Mr. Moncure: No, they cut him off at a Hundred Dollars. If
he gets a Hundred and Sixty, the Sixty goes out, and the Hun-
dred Dollars is all that he gets, whereas, the chap across the
street pays the same rate.

It produces no more cents in premiums because there is a
product they can take off the Manual rate. The total dollars
do not change on your Manual rate. There are some inadequa-
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cies that occur, and these gentlemen have a plan to work them

out, and that has been adopted in all but eight States. No
longer is the Hundred Dollars the limitation figure.

page 15 ] Commissioner Hooker: The purpose is to make
them equal?

Mr. Moncure: Yes. These things are above my head, but I
do understand that one.

Chairman Catterall: Go ahead.

Mr. Moncure: Today’s filing, therefore, includes a refiling
of this program and we will present testimony covering all
phases of the matter and supporting exhibits. The proposal
does not contemplate increasing premiums over those obtained
under the present limitations and the offsetting reductions in
the rates are intended to accomplish this purpose. For Vir-
ginia, the offsetting reduction in rates overall is 6.6 per cent.

I should also like to comment very briefly on the proposed
revision of the minimum premium formula which is also a
part of the filing. The present formula was established in 1927
and is obviously inadequate because of the change in the value

. of the dollar which has taken place over the years. When the
formula was originally established, the annual av-
page 16 ] erage wage was approximately Fifteen Hundred
Dollars and is now considerably more than twice
that amount. The filing, therefore, proposes that the present
formula of 15 x rate 4 expense constant be changed to 25 x
rate + expense constant, subject to the following ceilings:

First year — the minimum premium shall not be greater than
1.25 x (15 x proposed manual rate for first year + expense
constant).

Second year — the minimum premium shall not be greater
than 1.50 x (15 x proposed manual rate for second year +
expense constant).

Third and subsequent years—no limitation.

It is requested that the proposed rate revision and other
items contained in the filing be made effective July 1, 1963 on
new and renewal business. :

Mr. Robert D. Heitzmann, Assistant General Manager and

Mr. Roy H. Kallop, Actuary of the National Coun-
page 17 ]} cil on Compensation Insurance, are present and

will testify to the standard procedures used by the
Council in determining the revised rates.

Mr. Heitzmann will present the payroll business because he
has made a study of it, and we have taken a long period in
Virginia to see what real effect it will have on our payroll.



Virginia Manufacturers Association 13
v. Workmen’s Compensation Inspection Rating Bureau of Va.

Chairman Catterall: What happened to your one per cent
for occupational disease?

Mr. Moncure: Thatis not the catastrophe.

Chairman Catterall: You worked your catastrophe into your
rate base, but the overall basis is higher. You mentioned going
up six per cent, and going down six per cent. Are these rates
going to be higher after that six per cent?

Mr. Moncure: No. The rate percentage-wise will be de-
creased to take into account much more payroll by the change
for the test, and the 6.6 figure will make that adjustment so the

same figure is received.
page 18 } Chairman Catterall: But you began by saying
that there would be a six per cent decrease in
rates. Is the rate fixed after this adjustment?

Mr. Moncure: No. The overall increase set forth contem-
plates an overall five per cent increase in premium. If more
payrolls are used and we did not have the six per cent reduc-
tion factor then too much premium would result — as I under-
stand, it makes no particular difference, because it is the sole
purpose to make a premium adequate to pay the losses. That
came into the figure. It is like the old Rate Level Adjustment
Factor. They make them up and downward to cover the pro-
posed rate, and we have been losing money, and there is no
change, but there is a truing up to make the relationship.

The best illustration I can make is that if the proper one is
not bearing the load, then the others have to bear it.

Mr. Gray: Are we in agreement that the overall proposals
which you are making would have the effect of raising rates 3.7

per cent without the catastrophe loading; and, with
page 19 1 the catastrophe loading, it is five per cent?
Mr. Moncure. Not rates. I believe Mr. Heitz-
mann can explain that better than I

Mr. Heitzmann: If the rates are reduced 6.6 per cent, and
applied against higher payrolls the premium produced w111 be
3.7 per cent higher. The same premium will result if the $100
limited payrolls are applied against the rates without the 6.6%
reduction.

Mr. Gray: As you are saying it, it sounds as if you say, ‘‘If
you will grant us the maximum payroll, the effect will be that
the insurance companies will take in the same amount of
money.”’

Mr. Heitzmann: No, Sir.

Mr. Gray: But that is only true of the...

Mr. Heitzmann: We are asking for a 3.7 per cent additional
premium.
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Mr. Elliott: Before the allowance for catastrophe.
Mr. Heitzmann: You said before the allowance for catastro-

phe?
Mr. Elliott: Yes.
page 20 } Chairman Catterall: To sum it up, the lower
rate will produce higher premiuims because it will
be based on Three Hundred Dollars per week instead of One
Hundred Dollars per week.

Mr. Elliott: I think that is correct, Judge. The overall filing
requests an increase in premium of 3.7 per cent plus the effect
of the catastrophe, which may raise it to five per cent.

Mr. Heitzmann : That is correct. : :

Mr. Elliott: The 6.6 per cent reduction he spoke of has
nothing to do with the overall premiums to be collected. That
is a matter of redistribution of the various classes of the rates
to be changed. Take, for instance, a rate that the statistics
would indicate would be a ninety-eight cent rate for a classifi-
cation, but, since more payroll is to be available to apply the
rate to, then that ninety-eight cent rate would be ninety-one

. cents, we will say, but the fact to bear in mind is
page 21 ] that that has nothing to do with the overall pre-

mium of the Company. It is a matter of distribu-
tion among the classifications.

Mr. Moncure: That is correect.

Chairman Catterall: Mr. Gray, what are vour objections to
this proposal? .

Mr. Gray: We are here on behalf of the Virginia Manufac-
turers Association, which appears annually to assist the Com-
mission in getting at the facts in this matter, and, again this
year, we have employed the firm of Bowles, Andrews and
Towne to assist us in analyzing the filing of the National Coun-
cil, and assist us in making recommendations. I believe you
have been supplied copies of this original red document.

Chairman Catterall: File one as if it were a pleading.

Mr. Moncure: I think it would be well to file our reply brief.

Chairman Catterall: We will first file these as if they were
pleadings.

Mr. Moncure: They are usually filed as exhibits,
page 22 } Mr. Elliott: We have first the filing.
‘ Chairman Catterall: You don’t make that as an
exhibit? You don’t treat that as an exhibit at all?

Mr. Moncure: I would usually file it as Exhibit No. 1. The
filing is a part of the record, of course, without being an exhibit.

Mr. Elliott: It may he a part of the record, but it is a part of
the evidence, and I think it should be filed as an exhibit.
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Chairman Catterall: The filing, including the letter of trans-
missal, is received as Exhibit No. 1.

Then the Virginia Manufacturers Association’s Statement by
Bowles, Andrews and Towne, including the Supplement to
Recommendations, No. 3, and Recommendations, No. 4, - -

Mr. Gray: If you are going to include it all in one, we have
received notice from the National Council that the Industrial
Commission has made a recalculation, and I want to file Sup-
plement B, \Zhich is a Supplement to Recommendations 3 and

page 23 1 Chairman Catterall: We will call the statement

of Bowles, Andrews and Towne Exhibit No. 2; and
the Supplement to Recommendations Exhibit No. 3; and No. 4
will be Exhibit No. 3; and the Revised Exhibit B will be Ex-
hibit No. 4. Now, we have ‘‘Reply to Bowles, Andrews and
Towne Analysis Workmen’s Compensation Rate Filing,’’ and
that will be Exhibit No. 5.

Mr. Moncure: We found in Exhibit No. 1 that there are four
pages in which there were some clerical errors, and, if we
could call this 1-A, that would get the record correct.

Chairman Catterall: Call it Exhibit No. 6. That is the table
of clerical errors to correct four pages of filing. That will be
Exhibit No. 6, and I deem that to be substituted for correspond-
ing pages in the filing.

Mr. Gray: I have one other matter to straighten out. We
have clerical errors too.

) t(Z{lairmam Catterall: We could keep on filing them indefi-
nitely.
Mr. Gray: In the last paragraph on page 17,
page 24 1 second line, the figure Thirty-Five Dollars should
be Thirty-Seven Dollars, and the figure Fifty-
Eight Dollars and Thirty-Three Cents should be Sixty-One
Dollars and Sixty-Three Cents.

Chairman Catterall: Exhibit No. 2 is corrected as indicated
}-‘3, Mr. Gray. Now, go ahead, and tell us your objections to this

ing.

Mr. Gray: The nature of our recommendations as to the filing

. are set forth in Exhibit No. 2, and the first of them is, as it was
last year, an objection to the catastrophe loading. This matter
we went into very thoroughly last year, and the Commission
made the determination that the carriers were not justified in
the one cent loading for the catastrophe.

Chairman Catterall: We objected to the one penny being
gﬁ;ely arbitrary, and suggested that they include it in their

g‘
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Mr. Gray: They dressed the same old horse up and brought
him back. They are no more justified in filing it this way than
before.

page 25 } Chairman Catterall: That is Issue No. 1.

Mr. Gray: Issue No. 2 is one that is not an issue,
but one of comment and deals with the Rate Adjustment Factor,
and last year we did make an issue and said that the resuit
would be that this loading would be 1.6 per cent instead of
2.5 per cent, and the 2.5 per cent was the assumed figure and
not predicated on any basis, and, for that reason, we objected
to it. If we deal with the actual figures, and let the chips fall
;)vehgre they may, that is, up or down, that is the way it should

one.

Almost immediately after the hearing, the National Council
held their meetings and adjusted from 2.5 to 1.5; and so this
year, on the latest information, we hope we are at 1.5 and 1.6,
but it is the principle of that issue. Rather than assuming a
figure, we ought to deal with the figures we have.

The third recommendation is a matter merely of principle
again. It is not a question of any dollars to the
page 26 1 Virginia Manufacturers Association because this
deals with the minimum premium formula. The
National Council has suggested that the Commission’s rule
waives that. We don’t have any manufacturers that have a
payroll of less than Twenty-Five Hundred Dollars, so that we
are not affected from a dollar and cents standpoint, but this is
actually the other side of the coin we are going to talk about
when we get up from the One Hundred Dollars to the Three
Hundred Dollars schedule.

It does not make a lot of sense to me, and I am like Mr. Mon-
cure on some of this, I am sure I don’t understand it even as
much as he does, but I see some of it with a little brighter
light, and don’t see how we come up from the same figure to
this. It seems that the minimum calculation is calculated on
One Thousand and Forty, and I don’t see why he should be
required to pay on the minimum payroll of Twenty-Five Hun-
dred Dollars. The man who makes a minimum wage, the
charge is as if he was making Fifteen Hundred Dollars a year,

and he becomes a claimant under the Workmen’s
page 27 1 Compensation policy, he is not going to be com-

pensated as if he was making Twenty-Five Hun-
dred Dollars or Fifteen Hundred Dollars. He will be compen-
sated as if he was making One Thousand and Forty Dollars.
That is what they are compensated on, but the carriers are
collecting on more than the One Thousand and Forty.
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Chairman Catterall: They are assauming the factory has only
one employee.

Mr. Gray: Yes.

Chairman Catterall: If they bad two employees, it would be
hard to keep under Twenty-Flve Hundred Dollars?

Mr. Gray: Yes.

Chairman Catterall: This is not compulsory ?

Mr. Gray: No.

Chairman Catterall: If they had one employee, it could be?

Mr. Gray: Yes.

Chairman Catterall: So we are not talking about anything
that is apt to happen?

Mr. Gray: No, but I think this is a perfect weap-
page 28 ] on by which they can go to the manufacturers and
say - - -

Mr. Elliott: y’.'[‘here are fourteen hundred risks affected.

Chairman Catterall: Fourteen hundred have payrolls which
are less than Fifteen Hundred Dollars a year?

Mr. Elliott: This Exhibit No. 5 shows that for 1961 there
were fourteen hundred and fifty-seven risks.

Chairman Catterall: Those would have only one or two em-
ployees.

Mr. Elliott: I don’t know how they are arrived at.

Chairman Catterall: We will put this down as Issue No. 3.

Mr. Gray: We see that as diserimination to the employer
with one person or two persons who want to carry the insur-
ance, and to raise it to this level would make it discrimination
for that person who wanted to carry it for those two employees.

The fourth recommendation is a rehash from

page 29 ] last year, the correction of the factor for off-

balance. We have two objections. We disagree

with the loading for off-balance altogether. We think it is mul-

tiple ratemaking procedure to make the off-balance correction
factor. We don’t think it is sound to begin with.

Chairman Catterall: How do you define the ‘‘Off-Balance
Correction Factor’’?

 Mr. Gray: In the time I have had to study it, and from the

best information Mr. Goddard has given me, it is like a little
coloring machine. You put a certain amount of water at this
end, and it comes out at the other end, and you find out you
don’t have enough, and you assume that something is wrong
with the machinery, and you pour in some more water, and
that is the only justification for it.

Chairman Catterall: I thought the trouble was that where
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you have good experience, you collect more premiums to make
up for the bad experience.
Mr. Gray: Mr. Goddard will explain that.
page 30 } Chairman Catterall: It is similar to demerit
rating.

Mr. Gray: The other point we have other than the fact that
we disagree with it in its entirety, we feel that there should be
no change in it this year for the same reason National Council
said there should be no change last year. The general revision
is on two year figures, and last year they did not have one year,
and the one year they had indicated a decrease, they had one
year, and missed a year, and now have another year, and now
that it went up, they indicate that it should be decreased.

We say let’s put it uniformly, and wait until next year when
we have two years. Let’s make the figure for two years.

And the final objection is the proposed change from One
Hundred Dollars per week to Three Hundred Dollars per week.
I can’t understand why this man who is receiving One Hundred
and Fifty Dollars per week, why does he not get more preferen-
. tial treatment?

Chairman Catterall: Does he not get more money if he is
injured?
page 31 } Mr. Gray: No.
Chairman Catterall: He does not get any more
benefits?

Mr. Gray: No, Sir. He does not get a Hundred Dollars per
‘week, but the effective salary for benefits.is Sixty-One Dollars
and Sixty-Seven Cents, and his weekly benefit is Thirty-Seven
Dollars per week. Therefore, if he is making a Hundred Dollars
per week, he is paying more because, based on the Sixty-One
Dollars and Sixty-Seven Cents, and he is paying more than his
part of the load, and, if he makes Three Hundred Dollars per
week, he will be compensated on the same basis as the first
worker.

Chairman Catterall: The Three Hundred Dollars is not
geared to the insured worker’s compensation ?

Mr. Gray: No, Sir.

Chairman Catterall: It is not geared to the workman’s com-
pensation? :

Mr. Gray: No,except what he pays.
page 32 } Chairman Catterall: He does not pay, but the
employer is still made to pay forit?

Mr. Gray: It is on the basis that a man, if he can afford to
pay his employee Three Hundred Dollars a week, then this
poor employer over here can’t pay his employee so much, but
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why should he get the preferential treatment because he pays
more?

Chairman Catterall: Your point is that the employee gets
the benefit from it, but not the employer?

Mr. Gray: No. The proposal here is that the amount the
employer pays for this employee shall not be computed on a
limitation of One Hundred Dollars per week, but on Three
Hundred Dollars per week.

ROY KALLOP, ) )
page 33 ] a witness introduced on behalf of Applicant, being
first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Moncure: .
Q. Give the Commission your name, occupation, and address.
A. My name is Roy Kallop. I am the Actuary of the National
Council on Compensation Insurance; and I live in Yonkers,
New York.

Chairman Catterall: We all know this gentleman’s experi-
ence.

Mr. Moncure:

Q. This filing was made on the basis of the usual statistices
from the Industrial Commission for making the premiums on
industrial compensation insurance adequate to pay the losses,
which has been approved by this Commission?

A. Yes. .

Q. Now, coming to the first step, I might ask you this, so the
Commission can know exactly what we are talking about. I

. know that they know this, that when you get the
page 34 ] percentage, is that not distributed among the vari-
ous classifications, divided up so as to produce the

premium dollar?

A. Yes.

Q. Coming now to the catastrophe losses, tell us what you
}mve_tdone this year different from last year, and the reasons

or it.

A. Yes, Sir. In previous years in Virginia we have filed our
standard procedure which called for an even distribution of
catastrophe premium among the various classifications., Spe-
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cifically, it was one penny for each dollar of a payroll. This
penny covers each type of classification. A few years ago we
filed two pennies, one for the catastrophe losses and the other
for occupational diseases; and in the last two years these were
combined_to cover the catastrophe allowance for both types of
emergencies.

‘We know that in the past years the Corporation Commission
has been concerned with the facts with respeet to the low-rated
classifications, specifically clergymen, lawyers, and doctors,
where the Manual rate may be only four or five cents, and that

the increase of one penny made a difference
page 35 ] dollarwise in rates, although the dollars were quite

normal. We still feel that the penny expenditure
for the classification is the preferable method, but in our com-
mittee this year, in view of the Commission’s approach on small
classifications, we reviewed the percentage classification meth-
od. It is a good method, but the penny distributed among the
. classifications is the most desirable one.

Chairman Catterall: Don’t you have statistics covering occu-
pational diseases relating to things like silicosis?

A. For certain classifications they have, that is, for a plan
producing things bearing on pneumoconiosis and silicosis, there
is a specific element in these rates for these diseases.

Q. That would be in lieu of the one per cent?

A. No. Sir, it would be in addition. The general would be
for these, and the traumatic catastrophe.

Q. In other words, the one penny, or 1.3 per cent is to cover

cases where you could not imagine anyone having
page 36 ] an occupational disease, and then you have a spe-

cific loading where you know there is a chance of
their having an occupational disease?

A, Yes. -

Q. I can’t imagine anyone in the State Corporation Commis-
sion ever having an occupational disease unless it was from
the air conditioning. :

A. There have been cases where chemicals would affect
workers, and you could have an emergency of that type rather
than all types of classifications.

Q. Have you ever paid any occupational disease payment or
compensation to a clerical worker in an air conditioned build-
ing? .
A. I do not have any statisties to say ‘“Yes’’ or ‘‘no.”” I
imagine they could be allergic to certain types of soap that you
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use, or maybe ink that might be used or things of that sort. It is
not a common thing. .

Mr. Moncure:
Q. Anyhow, you throw it in in all the States?
A. Yes, Sir, in all of the States that I am aware of there is a
penny catastrophe loading, which would cover the traumatic
and disease coverages. I believe there are a few
page 37 ] ~States where the one cent is just for the traumatie.

Chairman Catterall: Let the witness define a ‘‘traumatic
catastrophe.’’

A. There has been confusion in recent years in what we
speak of as a catstrophe, and what many people think of as a
catastrophe. We are not speaking of a momentous catastrophe,
something earthshaking. We are drawing a line in our factor
for something that is an abnormal event. It is something that
you cannot rely on in the future. It is not the pattern that you
can anticipate as to what losses will occur in the future.

This rate, we beheve should involve accidents where more
than one person is mJured and we accept a portion of this loss
into the rate-making system. Specifically, in Virginia, I believe
the formula calls for losses up to Nineteen Thousand, Five Hun-
dred Dollars to be used in the development of our ratemaking
procedure. The losses above that, we believe, do not occur
within any regularity, so we cannot put any faith in these fig-

ures as to what to expect for the forthcoming year.
page 38 } For your information, I have taken some of the

actual losses which have been in excess of this
amount for the last six policy periods. These are rounded num-
bers, and contain the figures put in the following years:

1955-1956, the excess was Thirteen Thousand Dollars for the
first year.

The next year, 1956-1957, One Hundred and Sixteen Thou-
sand Dollars was eliminated.

The next year, 1957-1958, there were no loss amounts in ex-
Cess.

The following year, there was Forty-Eight Thousand Dollars
eliminated.

Mr. Elliott:
Q. That was the year 1958-1959%
A. Yes.
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The next year, 1959-1960, there was One Hundred and Ten
Thousand Dollars eliminated.
The latest year, it was Sixty Thousand Dollars in one case,
but this would have an effect on the classifications, but not an
effect on the rate level.
page 39 } These are actual losses, and not converted into
the latest rate level and adjustment expense. I
point this out because Mr. Goddard asked for some figures on
the last two years, and I understand he has some different
figures.

Chairman Catterall: What do these pennies add up to in
premiums?

A. The small item - - - :

Q. I want to know what the pennies amount to in premiums?

A. That, again, is something we would have to calculate. We
have no penny loading.

2. %his year it is going to be 1.3 per cent of the premium?

. Yes,

Q. So if you take 1.3 per cent of your premium, do you know
what that is?

Mr. Moncure:

Q. May I help you? Take your premium total, and take the
percentage figure of that. What is the figure that you get,
what is the figure you come up with; and that is the question
Commissioner Catterall asked you.

A. That is a mathematical calculation.
page 40 } A. I will then ask you to make the calculation.
He wants to know how many dollars the 1.3 per
cent will be applicable to?

A. T have calculated simply for verification, Two Hundred
and Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars.

Q. Is that reduced or raised by the Rate Level Adjustment
Factor, and by what approximate amount?

A. Yes. The premiums collected for the catastrophe losses
would be reflected in the calendar year data, and that would
have the effect of reducing this amount by approximately half,
so we would be receiving around One Hundred and Seventeen
Thousand Dollars.

Q. In other words, the Rate Level Adjustment Factor
would reduce that by about half?

A. Yes.
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Chairman Catterall: That is so paradoxical that we. should
have it explained.

Mr. Moncure:

Q. What is this Rate Level Adjustment Factor, and how
does that operate?

A. The premiums will include the amounts
page 41 ] collected for catastrophe, and if there were any
‘losses in excess of these limitations for a calendar

year, they would also be included.

So, on the loss side, if you do have amounts above the
limitations, this would increase the Rate Level Adjustment
Factor, but the premium you are collecting for this 1.3 per
cent would have the effect of reducing the premium figure by
half. That would leave you one-half of the Two Hundred and
Fourteen Thousand Dollars.

Chairman Catterall: I still can’t understand that. Mr.
‘Moncure is a lawyer. Let him sum it up, and then you ecan
tell us if he is correet.

Mr. Moncure: If you take your Rate Level Adjustment
Factor, and include your premiums collected on your 1.3 per
cent catastrophe, and include it in your total premium receipts,
you change the premium, without it in there, down to, say,
1.29 per cent, which has the effect of taking fifty per cent of
the 1.3 per cent into the Rate Reduction. Is that what you are

trying to tell us?
page 42 } A. Expressed another way, if you were collect-
ing premium losses, and not paying losses, if in
the current year involved there were no catastrophe losses,
in lieu of realizing the 1.3 per cent of the catastrophe losses,
you would only collect one-half of that, which would be six-
tenths of one per cent, or seven-tenths of one per cent.

Chairman Catterall: I can’t understand it to save my life.
It does not make any sense.

Mr. Moncure: This Rate Level Adjustment Factor —

Chairman Catterall: It puts them down.

Mr. Moncure: It puts them up as often as down, and the
Rate Level Adjustment Factor jumps to down because you
are getting this much premium, and if you have the 1.3 per
cent for catastrophes, and no catastrophe occurs, you have
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that figure and your Loss Adjustment Factor says you have
no more.
Chairman Catterall: T understood the Adjustment Factor
always went up.
Mr. Moncure: That Rate Level Adjustment
page 43 1 Factor is like a sign on the railway, and when
you are getting it too high, it shows us that, and
we look at past history when the companies were getting too
much premium, and that Rate Level Adjustment Factor was
put in, and it was reduced; and the next year there has been
a difference, but the whole idea is to get the right amount of
premium to pay the losses.
Chairman Catterall: If the losses produce that much load-
ing for one year, then you will give it back the next year?

A. Yes.

Mr. Moncure:
" Q. T have asked you to prepare for me an exhibit showing
the rates which would have been had you ignored your catas-
trophe colleetions, and thrown your catastrophe losses into
the ratemaking procedure, that is, put them in as a loss?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you made that for me?

A. Yes.

Mr. Moncure: I ask that that be received as Exhibit
No. 7.
page 44 ] Chairman Catterall: That will be reccived as-
Exhibit No. 7.
Tell us what the abbreviations mean, ‘“‘MFG’’ and
““CONT,”’ on that statement.

A. That is ‘‘Manufacturing,”’ ‘‘Contracting,”’ and All
Other.

Mr. Moncure:

Q. Now, look on the line and tell us, in the first column
there, what is the request for rates covered in this filing; point
out that line to us.

A. The top half of the exhibit is what we have actually filed,
specifically referred to as Line 5. This shows the change in
rate level due to experience which overall produces the three
per cent increase.
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Q. That is on your method of not throwing in the losses
you define as ‘‘catastrophe?’’
A. Yes.
Q. Drop on down to the next column, and tell me whether
you have put in your so-called catastrophe losses there?
A. Now, you are talking about the one where
page 45 ] the catastrophe losses aret
Q. Yes.
A. That is showing the 3.9.

Mr. Elliott:
Q. As distinguished from the 3.7%
A. Yes.

Mr. Moncure:

Q. And there is a difference there of two per cent?

A, Yes.

Q. While we are looking at this, it may be of help on the
Rate Adjustment Factor on the ‘“A. O.”’ your Line 5, it is 3.9
per cent, whereas, when you come down to throwing in the
catastrophe, you come in with a lesser factor of 3.6 per cent.
Is that the result of throwing in the catastrophe losses?

A. Yes. There was no catastrophe in the ‘All Other”
group. In fact, all of the catastrophe included in the rate
level was in the manufacturing group.

Q. So, if the Commission saw fit to show catas-
page 46 ] trophe losses in general ratemaking, our applica-
tion would be the figures in Line 5, or a total

increase of 3.9 per cent?
A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Moncure: All right, that is enough about catastrophe.

Mr. Gray: Would it be helpful if we took it issue by issue?

Chairman Catterall: I believe it would be helpful to cross
examine on this, and we could all be thinking about it.

CROSS EXAMINATION

By Mr. Gray:

Q. You spoke about a person having an allergy to soap
or an allergy to ink, from which they could have an occupa-
tional disease. Would that allergy be so unusual as to come
under the penny?
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A. The penny allowance is to cover both the catastrophe
on a traumatic accident and also on situations where you do
have an emergency of diseases. It represents both. It is
something unknown.

Q. Is it something we don’t know about people having an
allergy to soap or ink?

A. If you had a flock of these as a result

page 47 1 of some new kind of soap or ink, to create a

large number of cases of the disease, you may

have a large office building, and the amount did exceed the
limitation, it would not be used in our ratemaking.

Q. What is the limitation for disease?

A. The limitation for disease runs around Forty-Seven
Thousand Dollars. _

Q. Is not the figure Forty-Eight Thousand, Seven Hundred
and Fifty Dollars; is that the figure?

A. T have it here. Just a minute — Yes.

Q. So, up to Forty-Eight Thousand, Seven Hundred and
Fifty Dollars, they are in the ordinary category?

A. Yes.

Q. Let’s think about this thing, this filing we are talking
about right now, and your request for 1.3 per cent. Is there
going to be any adjustment made anywhere that will cut
down the amount that will be paid this year for catastrophe
to that 1.3 per cent? Will the Rate Level Adjustment Factor
affect it? :

A. Tt would have no effect this year.

Q. So, if you collect that much this year,
page 48 ] it is gone? -

A. The effect of setting up the rates this year
for anticipation of what will occur, and we have limited losses
and adjust forward.

Q. What limitations?

A. The limitations are in excess of Forty-Eight Thousand
Dollars, but the traumatic were limited to Nineteen Thousand,
Five Hundred Dollars.

Q. What were the limitations last year?

A. T think it is approximately the same amount.

Q. It is Twenty Thousand Dollars?

A. Yes.

Q. I was impressed that the only thmg coming down was
catastrophe. Have you computed the average losses that you
characterize as ‘‘catastrophe losses’’ for six years? Have you
computed what they are annually?
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A. No, because we consider them unpredictable. There is
no prediction on losses. This could go to Four or Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars.

Q. Are wle talking about Four Hundred Thousand Dol-

ars?
page 49 ] A. This might represent many customers, and
it may not involve any catastrophes.

Q. How do you get the ﬁgure'then?

A. In 1957-1958, we had no losses in excess of the limitation.

Q. Did you total up what the losses were for that six year
period?

A. I can do that.

Q. Will you do that, and tell me what the total catastrophe
losses were for six years?

A. I have Four Hundred and Forty-Seven Thousand Dol-
lars. That includes the catastrophe that was on the Long-
shoremen. If you exclude that, Three Hundred and Eighty-
Seven Thousand Dollars.

Q. Give me a Hundred Thousand, and make it Three
Hundred and Forty-Seven Thousand?

A. Two Hundred and Eighty-Seven Thousand.

Commissioner Hooker: They were the six year figures?
A. Yes. If you took the catastrophe on the Longshoremen.

Chairman Catterall: There is no reason to in-
page 50 ] clude that any more than the explosion in Siberia.
A. Tt does affect the rates. There are situations
where stevedore men were working on the dock.
Q. But these rates today have nothmg to do with Long-
shoremen?
A, Not as respects the overall rates themselves, but the rate
filed for that classification covers both.

Mr. Gray:

Q. Tell me what the average has been for the last two
years — divide it out.

A. It is a little less than Fifty Thousand Dollars.

g IYt is Forty-Eight Thousand Dollars per year?

es.

Q. And what will this 1.3 per cent produce by way of ad-
ditional premium this year?

A. Two Hundred and Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars.
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Q. That is what it produces?
A. Yes.
page 51 } Q. At last year’s hearing, we were discussing
a quarter of a cent loading, which previously
existed, and the Company said that that did not produce
suﬁci?t because of some kind of rounding proposition?
. Yes,

Q. If you had used the same method you had used this
vear, and expressed it in percentage points, rather than pen-
nies, you could have calculated that one fourth?

A. Based on these figures?

Q. Based on anything. Today you are talking about 1.3,
and that is equivalent to one cent.

Chairman Catterall: How does that get to be one cent?
Mr. Gray: It is based on various categories of risks.

. Mr. Elliott:

Q. You define the rate, and add one cent to the rate, and
under the percentage method you come up with a rate in the
same manner except you add to that rate an additional
1.3 per cent. So that in some cases it may mean nothing, but

certainly any rate above forty-five cents, it would
page 52 1 have the effect of raising the rate five cents, but

on a rate of Fifty Dollars, you would raise it
forty-five cents? '

A. Tt would increase the rate.

Q. It is 1.1 per cent which is four or five cents?

A. Yes, Sir. And anything below a certain figure, below -
that payment of forty-five cents, you would have no catas-
trophe.

Q. And studies would show that it would pick up at sixteen
cents; drop a little, and pick up at eighteen cents; and then
have no effect until twenty-one cents or something of that
kind? '

A. Yes.

Mr. Gray:

Q. The point I am trying to make is this: As I understood
the position the National Council took last year was that one
penny is the lowest amount we can put on, and this is why
we are putting on this most trifling amount that we can put
on it, but when you express it in percentage points, if the
Commission felt the one penny was too much, you could divide
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it by six or any amount, and you could realize premium dollars
from it?

page 53 } A. In the overall, but since rates are only car-
ried in dollars and cents, that has the effeet of no

increase or an increase of two or three —

Q. Why does the 1.03 meet your needs? Why not make it
one point?

A. The carriers felt that the reason for this liability in the
overall should be approximately the same as a penny per
hundred dollars.

Q. The carriers feel that an allowance of Two Hundred and
Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars is the minimum that should
be permitted to cover the loses which have averaged Forty-
Seven Thousand Dollars per year for the past six years?

A. No. It was not based on statistics. We do not believe
it should be based on statistics.

Q. That is what exactly I want to get to. It is the same
old horse, not based on statistics this year any more than last
year, but the same old horse dressed in a different color. It
is not expressed in statistics any more than last year, but
it is the same old horse.

A. Tt is the same old problem dealing with the problem, and

the best way we can handle it.
page 54 ] Q. And your Exhibit No. 7 just filed, is based
on what statistics?

A, Yes.

Q. I said ‘“‘based on what statistics?’’

A. This is what would happen if there were no catastrophe
allowance.

Q. This is what would happen if you gri ind into the machine
your rate and classification?

A. Yes.

Q. The bottom part of this exhibit, this rate level, based
on no catastrophe allowance is your next angle?

A. T believe so. There is some question in our mind as to
what can be used as catastrophe. You refer to Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars —

Q. If that Five Hundred Thousand Dollars were to apply,
what effect would it have?

A. If the same relation applied, it would have the same
effect.

Q. It would not change one figure on this paper at all?
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A. Not with respect to those years there.
page 55 } Q. How do the companies handle losses of Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars, and over?

A. They could handle it —

Starting from the beginning, the companies receive —

Q. I asked you how do you pay the losses.

A. How do they pay the losses?

Q. Yes.

A. T imagine a good many of the companies have reinsur-
ance agreements. I can’t speak of any particular company.
I am not familiar with the internal construction of the com-
panies.

Q. And if a company has reinsurance on a cost of this
magnitude, that is one of the costs of operation?

A. If he has reinsurance, he pays money cvery year for
providing that reinsurance, and that would be taken care of
by the loss side when the catastrophe occurs.

- Q. And when he receives the premium dollar, that has to
cover the cost of reinsurance?

A. T don’t know the price or the basis. I don’t think this
is germane to this subject.

Q. You don’t think that the fact that the
page 56 1 company receives a premium and takes a small
portion of that and pays for reinsurance is ger-

mane to this issue?

A. For one reason, no, because the reinsurance is a different
amount. I don’t believe the company would insure for an
amount in excess of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars.

Q. What ever he insures for, he pays for out of the
premiums he receives? '

A. Yes, actually.

Q. And on his balance sheet, when he determines whether
he made a profit or loss, the amount of reinsurance that he
paid for would be one of the cost items?

A. Yes.

Q. How many companies are writing Workmen’s Com-
pensation in Virginia today$

A. Idon’t know the exact number.

Q. A hundred and forty five — would you say that is about
right?

A. T would accept that, Sir.

Q. Is it your contention that these companies should
be allowed to receive an excess over the
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page 57 1 loss that you are encountering in order to build
up a reserve{

A. T think companies should receive a reasonable price for
this liability, and we believe that the 1.3 per cent is a reason-
able price.

Q. Would it have been a reasonable price the last six years?

A. I don’t think you can tie it down to any period of time.

Q. Then you are, in effect, saying that you think they should
be allowed to accumulate a reserve?

A. Even if no loss occurs, the companies have to expose
their money to losses. Their entire assets are on the line.

Q. We are now talking about Two Million Dollars, and not
Nineteen Hundred.

A. With one company, if their premium is only Thirty-Five
Thousand Dollars, and they had a loss of this magnitude that
wipes out their premium for thirty-five years, and I would
consider that a catastrophe for that company.

Q. You think that company should be al-
page 58 1 lowed to build up a reserve?

A. Tbelieve they should be allowed a reasonable
price each year for exposing their money to this type of in-
surance, and when a catastrophe occurs, he has to pay, whether
he is reinsured or not.

Q. But if he is reinsured, he has not exposed his money to
the losses?

A. But he is paying reinsurance premiums.

Q. But he is paying it out of his premium received from
his policyholder?

A. Yes.

Q. And he is paying a premium for that?

A. For any premium year you come up with that, but he
has to expose his money to that hazard.

Q. But if a catastrophe occurs, and the reinsurance com-
pany pays it, it does not affect him$

A. Again, we get back to the same thing we were dlscussmg
a few minutes ago. He has to pay his reinsurance out of his
premium.

Q. And if they don’t want to expose their company’s as-
sets, they can reinsure and pay for it out of the premium they

receive?
A. Yes.
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page 59 } Q. And they don’t have to build up a reserve
from their premium?
A. They have to pay the customary premium.
Q. And they have done so out of the person’s premium that
has paid for that insurance?
A. Yes.

Chairman Catterall: 11:30 A. M. The Commission will
recess for ten minutes.

11:40 A. M. The Commission resumes its session.

Chairman Catterall: Would both sides be happy if we
compromise that by making it one-half of one per cent, in-
stead of 1.3 per cent? The opposition said the 1.3 per cent
was to take the place of the one per cent, and that covered

the actual thing.

Mr. Moncure: The suggestion was made that the proper
place to put it was to put it in Profit and Contingencies, and,
instead of having that figure 2.5 per eent, to make that figure
three per cent.

Chairman (‘atterall: It would be Profit and
page 60 1 Contingencies?

Mr. Moncure: That is one thing you suggested.
I don’t consider our figures as to catastrophe — I am not
speaking for my clients, and I realize the Commission’s at-
titude, and I have told them that is the reason I had this
exhibit prepared. I fell that if I am not including it in my
basic figures, and all the othér States recognize it, but they
can’t say that we abandoned it in Virginia. We say it has
been recognized as fair ratemaking, and I feel that is a fair
solution to it.

Mr. Gray: On principle we are opposed to it because we
have said that they can grind this into the rates, and come
up with it, and they have filed this Exhibit No. 7, and we think
that they should put the rates in, and put them in on those
figures, and they ean put in the experience on those figures
and come out with the answer. This is what Mr. Kallop said
could not be.

Chairman Catterall: They have these nation-

page 61 ] wide statisties, and the practice of throwing in
these Fourteen Thousand Dollars, and I can see

the theory of it, but what we are interested in is dollars, and
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if we can give them one-half of one per cent, they would break
even.

Mr. Gray: We don’t think this is the proper way, and if
they put the figures in in the regular rate, this would come
out in the end.

Chairman Catterall: Then you would contemplate a Rate
Adjustment Factor.

Mr. Gray: I don’t think, if these are put in, it would com-
prehend a Rate Adjustment Factor.

Chairman Catterall: We would never hit the bull’s eye.

Mr. Gray: No, Sir. I don’t see why we should by this one-
half of one per cent.

Chairman Catterall: In your own mind you can assume
that the two and a half per cent has gone to three per cent,
but we don’t want to do it because that would have some

weight in Florida.
page 62 } Mr. Moncure: The next questlon was the Rate
Level Adjustment Factor.

Mr. Elliott: Don’t you think you had better clear this up
for the record? If the Commission’s suggestion is accepted,
and put into effect, may I ask one or two questions on the
record?

Chairman Catterall: Yes, certainly.

Mr. Elliott:

Q. Referring to Exhibit No. 7, then what happens in the
top half of that exhibit, Line 6, ¢s the Catastrophe Allowance
changes to 1.005 across the board?

A, Yes.

Q. And then you arrive, in Column 7, at Total Change in
Manual Rate Level, and you multiply those figures shown in
Line 5 by the 1.005 and that gives you the change in Manual
Rate Level for Manufacturing, Contracting, and All Other,
ang ﬂ? total; is that correct?

. Yes.

Mr. Elliott: I think that shows on the record
page 63 ] now. It shows exactly what they are, and you don’t
‘have what they are? .
A. No, we never do that.

Chairman Catterall: The Rate Level Adjustment Factor
was what you were objecting to?
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Mr. Moncure: He was only against that in principle.
Chairman Catterall: That would be the 1.0052
Mr. Moncure: Yes. We move on to the Premium Formula.

Q. Will you make your explanation on that, please, Mr.
Kallop?

A. Yes. The present Formula, which applies for determin-
ing minimum premium, that is the minimum charge that is
necessary to underwrite any risk, has been a formula that
has been in effect many, many years. It went back to 1927, -
and at that time the formula was established and determined
by considering what the average annual wage was at that
time, and figuring what the premium would be for all workers,
and adding to it the Ten Dollar expense constant. That

formula has been in effect, and is still in effeet.
page 64 } In recent years the companies have felt that

this was out of line, and does need adjustment.
_This is something that you would not change very often, but
they did feel, in the light of current economical conditions,
with an average annual wage based on 1927, which is con-
siderably different from what the annual wage is today, and
the National Council reviewed the problem, and noted that
the average annual wage today is in the neighborhood of
Forty-Three Hundred Dollars. This, in itself, would have
required a considerable inercase in the minimum premium
formula. '

Chairman Catterall: When you say ‘‘minimum premium
formula,’’ you mean you apply the Manual rate to the Twenty-
Five Hundred Dollars, and then add Ten Dollars?

A, Yes.

Q. The Ten Dollars is for the expense of the paper work?

A. Yes, in part.

Q. And acquisition, and other costs?

A. Yes. '

Q. How many dollars are you talking about
page 65 1 when you say you apply the premium rate of
Twenty-Five Hundred Dollars?

A. The average rate in Virginia is around Eighty Cents,
and I think we are speaking about an inerease of maybe Eight
Dollars.

Q. If the premium rate was One Dollar, then the premium
would be Twenty-Five Dollars plus Ten Dollars, which would
be Thirty-Five Dollars minimum, instead of a Twenty-Five
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Dollar minimum ¢

A. Yes.

Q. In other words, about Ten Dollars more for the little
fellow?

A. Yes.

Q. And there are fourteen hundred of the little people?

A. According to the reports we have received from the
Virginia Industrial Commission, that is correet. The amount,
of course, varies in accordance with the size of the Manual
rate. The low rate of classifications has only a nominal
amount of increase. The higher classifications have a more
substantial inerease.

Mr. Moncure:
page 66 ] Q. When you use the Twenty-Five to Thirty-
Five Dollars, that is twenty-five per cent for the
first year?
A. Yes.
Q. What is it the second year?
A. That is another twenty-five per cent.
Q. And the third year on the minimum?
A. Yes. Then the new formula would take effect.

Chairman Catterall: Then they only pay it for two years?

Mr. Elliott: That would bhe an increase of sixty-six and
two-thirds per cent?

A. On this particular case of Twenty-Five to Thirty-Five.

Q. On any?

A. On any of that, that applies.

Q. But on the rate prior to the inerease, it would be sixty-
six and two-thirds per cent?

A. No, fifteen times the small rate would only give you a
few dollars, plus the expense constant, which would be Ten
Dollars, but when you inerease the premium by Twenty-Five

Hundred Dollars —
page 67 ] Q. Then you multiply it by a multiplier of
sixty-six and two-thirds per cent?

A. Yes.

Q. So, on the rate paid, it is an increase of sixty-six and
two-thirds per cent?

A. Yes.

Q. And that portion that Mr. Mouncure referred to by in-
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creasing twenty-five per cent the first year; and twenty-five
per cent the next year, and then the third year nothing, would
not be realized until the third year?

A. The full premium would be building up.

Chairman Catterall: The rate base for your Ten Dollars
is not covering the costs that it was meant to cover?

A. Yes, there are several initial costs the carrier has. He
has to have the right to set up the policy, acquisition costs,
taxes, and statistical programs for the Industrial Commision
on each risk, and other items,

Q. But none of them is related to the amount of the premium
on the balance of the workers?

A. That is right.
page 68 } Q. What you really want to do is ask for an
increase of the Ten Dollars, and you figure it
would be justified by today’s expenses?
~ A. In your concept of it as a minimum, you are referring
to one worker, and the premium you get from one worker,
but the worker in a higher rated class would have a higher
premium than for the lower rated employee.

Mr. Moncure: I believe that covers that.
Chairman Catterall: We will take that under advisement,
and we would be glad to have any suggestions from counsel.

CROSS EXAMINATION

By Mr. Gray:

Q. Do you have any losses for Virginia on minimum pre-
mium risks?

A. Yes; and I would like to explain, having read Mr.
Goddard’s supplement, that he has been interested in the
Loss Experience of minimum premium risks. I had earlier
given him information on the number of such risks, and the
premium amounts. If I had known he was interested in the

Loss Experience, I would have made that informa-
page 69 ] tion available to him also, but we have such in-
formation.

Mr. Elliott:

Q. Is that Page 9 of Exhibit No. 52

A. Yes, specifically, in the two years involved in our rate-
making period; the first year the incurred losses amounted to
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Seventy-Two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars; and, in the
second year, Seventy-Two Thousand, and Twenty-Two Dol-
lars.

Mr. Gray:

Q. And what was the premium you received in the two
yvears?

A. The premium we received from the expense constant
was, for the first year, Forty-Four Thousand, Six Hundred
and Fifty-Four Dollars; and the second year, Fifty-Five
Thousand, Six Hundred and Forty-Five Dollars.

Q. How much premium did you receive from this classifica-
tion of risk, exclusive of the expense constant?

A. For the two years combined, Seventy-Five Thousand,
Two Hundred and Thirty-Nine Dollars.

Q. What were the losses incurred from that
page 70 1 class?

A. Fifty Thousand, One Hundred and Two
Dollars. :

Q. You took in premium Twenty-Five Thousand, Five
Hundred Dollars more than the losses incurred, without any
consideration for the expense constant?

A. Yes; the loss rate of 66.3 is well above the permissible
loss ratio used in ratemaking.

Cha6irx:1))1an Catterall: What was your loss ratio?
. 66.
What is permissible loss ratio?
. Around 59.6.
That was without your Ten Dollars?
Yes.
So your Ten Dollars really covers this expense?
. No. The Ten Dollars helps to pay part of the initial
expense.
Q. Does every insured pay the Ten Dollars in addition to
the Manual premium?
A. Up to premiums of Five Hundred Dollars.
Q. And above that you don’t collect the
page 7T0A } Ten Dollars?
A. That is right, but the Ten Dollars expense
cozstaYnt is automatically included in the Manual premium.
. Yes.

b O PO PO
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Mr. Gray:

Q. And your total premium that you received the last two
years, without consideration of the expense factor, was
Seventy-Nine Thousand, Two Hundred and Thirty Dollars.
How much of that increase over a two year period — this
total is two years — how much would that be increased when
the full effect of your proposal is in?

A. That would vary by classification.

Q. Why would it vary by classification? Why would 1t not
be sixty-six and two-thirds per cent more than Seventy-Five
Thousand Dollars?

A. You are dealing with Column 3, exclusive of the expense
constant?

2. %es. 1t will go up sixty-six and two-thirds per cent?

. Yes.
Q. So ymia are increasing it by Sixty-Six Thousand Dol-
rs?
_ page 71 } A, Yes.
Q. What sort of loss ratio would you have then?

A. The thing I think we are missing is that we are propos-
ing an increase in the minimum premium formula because
of needed money for expenses. The loss factor here shows
that the amount of premium payable for losses is being used
for losses, and the increase in dollars is for the necessary
additional expense of handling. The fact is that from 1927
imtil now the cost of these expenses has increased tremendous-
y.

Q. How much has the expense constant netted you?

A. The expense constant applies to —

Q. How much has it netted you for handling this?

A. Twenty-Four Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars.

Q. You are asking for an increase of Fifty Thousand Dol-
larst

A. The minimum premium is cut to two points.

page 72 } Q. It will net you, if the rate had been based

on Twenty-Five Hundred instead of Fifteen Hun-

dred, it would have netted you an additional Fifty Thousand
Dollars?

A. That is right.

Q. So that to cover these additional costs, you want three
times as much as you are now getting?

A. No, Sir. The total premium is One Hundred Thousand
Dollars.
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Q. Three times as much as you are now getting without
considering the expense constant?

A. You can’t split the minimum premium up that way. The
minimum premium is the formula to show the amount of the
total.

Q. You split it up on the exhibit?

A. We are trying to show that, as far as the present rates
are concernced, the amount available for losses has been paid
out for losses. The losses have been paid out of what is
being paid in for losses.

Q. And the expense is available for expense?

A. Yes.

Q. And how much has been paid out, Twenty-Four Thou-

sand Dollars?
page 73 } A. Yes, absolutely.
Q. And you are now asking for Fifty Thou-
sand?

A. For the total amount, yes, Sir.

Q. You did not use the loss portion to pay expenses. You
told me that paid the losses, so you are using part of the
expense to pay losses? :

A. This is a figure to produce more dollars.

Q. How much would it produce if the figures remain the
same, Fifty Thousand?

A. Yes. -

Q. And how much was available under expense?

A. The expense constant itself was Twenty-Four Thousand
Dollars.

Q. And you had Twenty-Four Thousand, and you want
Fifty Thousand Dollars more to pay them?

Chairman Catterall: We have got you along on the same
basis. Maybe Mr. Elliott can clear us up.

Mr. Elliott:
Q. What is the basis for the request for the change in the
minimum rule; is it losses or expense?
page 74 } A. 1t is expense.

"~ Q. Under the figures shown on Page 9 of Ex-
hibit No. 5, you are presently getting Twenty Dollars a policy
for expense on minimum premium policy, are you not? And
I arrive at that by taking .32 of the premium plus the expense
constant of Twenty-Four Thousand, Four Hundred and
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Sixty Dollars, which gives you a total of Forty-Eight Thou-
sand, Eight Hundred and Sixty-Four Dollars for expense on
these policies. Is that not right?

A. You are speaking of average increase?

Q. Yes. In other words, you had during the two-policy
years 1959-1960 and 1960-1961, Twenty Thousand Dollars of
expense on these two minimum premium policies?

Chairman Catterall: One-third of the premium plus Ten
Dollars.

A. I am sorry, I am a little confused.

Mr. Elliott:
Q. This rate is divided into Sixty-Eight Dollars, and
Thirty-Two, Sixty-Eight for losses, and Loss Adjustment
Factor, and Thirty-Two for Expense, and two and
~ page 75 ] a half per cent for Profit, but, taking it roughly
at Thirty-Two. That gives you, out of your
premium dollar, something over Twenty-Four Thousand Dol-
lars from your rate for expense; isn’t that right?
A. Twenty-Four Dollars.
Q. Twenty-Four Thousand Dollars from the rate paid on
your premium?
A. Yes.
Q. And you got Twenty Thousand and Sixty Dollars from
your expense constant part of your premium?
A. Yes.
Q. How many more dollars do you need, and what is the
justification for it?
A. The problem arises in the fact that in 1927, which was —

Chairman Catterall: Oh, no. Can’t you tell Mr. Elliott how
many more dollars you want?

A. If T understand you ecorrectly, Sir, it would be Twenty
Thousand.

Mr. Elliott:
Q. What do you base the Twenty Thousand Dollars on?
A. Excuse me. You are talking about thirty-
page 76 1 two per cent. I think it would be a little higher
than that. I think it would be closer to Thirty
Thousand Dollars. We start with a rate of Seventy-Five
Thousand Dollars, and recognize that the total expense al-
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lowance in the rate structure for that would be, roughly,
thirty-five per cent. The total expense allowance, including
the Loss Adjustment Expense, is a little closer to forty per
cent.

Q. Well, you keep talking about the fact that this rule
was established in 1927, but, since 1927, and, as a matter of
fact, in the last seven or eight years, the expense constant
was added. The expense constant was not a part of the rule
originally? -

A. Yes. The formula in 1927 was fifteen times the rate
plus the Ten Dollars expense constant. I stand corrected.
T was unaware there was the expense constant.

Q. And this was added to take care of the expense.

Chairman Catterall: We will take all of this under ad-
visement. Is that all?
Mr. Moncure: No; the Off Balance.

Mr. Moncure:
page 77 ] Q. Address yourself now to the Off Balance
Factor, when you make your rates across the
boardﬁyou don’t come up with the exact rate?
. No.

Q. And this is due to what?

A. We do have an experience rating plan.

Q. And the rule in regard to an experience rating plan is
compulsory in Virginia?

A. Yes.

Q. And if you receive only ninety-five per cent in this
minimum premium, how do you bring it to one hundred per
cent? '

A. We have in our Manual five per cent for Off Balance.

Q. Is that the five per cent you multiplied by?

A. Yes. It is three per cent in arithmetic.

Q. And in arithmetic it takes three per cent to bring up
your ultimate rates to one hundred per cent?

A. Yes.

Q. And is that calculated under your experience rating

plan?
page 78 1  A. Yes.

Chairman Catterall: And you apply that so far as your
experience rated people, as well as cverywhere else?
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A. Yes, insofar as experience rated people are in the
minimum rate.

Q. It is in substance the same figure that you have always
followed ¢

A. Yes.

Q. Isn’t that the purpose for which it has always been used,
ang sxgh adjustment as you have made?

. Yes.

CROSS EXAMINATION

By Mr. Gray:

Q. You said you did it this way, the way we have always
done it?

A. Yes. I think I explained last year, and, as you know,
has been explained earlier at this hearing, that the policy
year 1959-1960 was not available, and we did not have the

use of those figures, and we followed our standard procedure
’ by recognizing whatever experience has been
page 79 ] available which involves new information on the

policy year, 1960-1961.

Q. Have you not normally used two years?

A. We have used two periods involved in ratemaking.

Q. The two latest periods?

A. The two periods involved in ratemaking.

Q. And last year you had only one year?

A. Last year we had the figures for the latest information
because we had no new information.

Q. What did you do?

A. We retained the same factor.

b Q. Did the information you have now indicate that it should

e!

- A. The latest year was unknown. The other year by itself
would have called for a decrease.

Q. So the latest indication you had for last year would
have called for a decrease, but, because you only had one year,
you kept it at the same?

A. Tt was because we had no new information available. No
new facts were known to us last year. If the information had
been available, we would have used it.
page 80 } Q. Year before last, how much of a decrease

did the information you had indicate should be
put into the Off Balance Factor?

A. Two years ago?
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Q. Yes.

A. Twould have to check that.

Q. But did it not indicate it should be two points, but, be-
cause of the indicated, it was only one point?

A. Yes.

Q. And year before last, it should have been a two point
decrease, but, because of the limitation, you came down to
one point?

A. I would have to check that.

Q. When you looked at it last year, did it not indicate it
should come down one point?

A. Last year, since there was no new information, it did
not indicate any change at all. It could not move one point
or two points.

Q. Is that the reason you usually use two years’ informa-
tion, instead of one?

A. It would be the same thing if we had no informa-

tion at all on Virginia. We would not go
‘page 81 1 in and file for additional rates based on no new
information of the latest policy year.

Chairman Catterall: What are you asking for this year?

Mr. Elliott: Increasing it from two to three per cent.

Chairman Catterall: That is one per cent point across the
board in the rate. Mr. Gray, I believe I will ask you if you
can find out if the information year before last indicated that
it should come down two points.

Mr. Gray: I would have to check the filing for that.

Chairman Catterall: Do you remember that, Mr. Elliott?

Mr. Elliott: No.

Chairman Catterall: When you were before the Commis-

sion, you did not have the latest year, but only one year was
presented?

A. Yes.
Q. And that data was not available?
A. No.
Q. Do you have last year’s data today?
page 82 ] A. Yes.

Q. And you are calculating that on the latest
two years now? ‘
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Mr. Gray:

Q. You want to calculate it on the latest year you have
available?

A. Yes, it is the new information available.

Q. And you want to calculate it on the one year?

A. If the information had been available, we would have
included that.
. hg:.? But you have not used the experience of the year before

A. That is unsound in a ratemaking program.

Mr. Moncure: This year it showed an increase of more
than one per cent, but the limitation held it down to one per
cent?

A. Yes.

Chairman Catterall: We will take this part of it under
_ advisement. ‘

Mr. Moncure: I think Mr. Heitzmann had better answer
the next questions.

Witness stqod aside.

page 83 } ROBERT D. HEITZMANN,
a witness introduced on behalf of Applicant, being
first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Moncure:

Q. Please give your name, and occupation.

A. My name is Robert D. Heitzmann. I am Assistant
General Manager of the National Council of Compensation
Insurance. :

Q. Come on down now to Payroll Changes, and address
yourself to that variation, and why you recommend that
increase from a Hundred Dollars to Three Hundred Dollars,
and whether it will bring about any actual increase in pre-
miums, and so forth.

A, T think, boiled down, we can relate these changes to
two purposes: One we disucced in 1958; and one was the use
of Payrolls, and the effect we have today from our economic
changes that have occurred, relating the Payroll Change to
the economic change, and how they relate to this thing, plus
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the fact that rates are changed each year. Each year we come

in with a annual rate revision which we think is a valu-
able asset to Workmen’s Compensation Insurance

page 84 1 in making all the revisions and things necessary
in Virginia.

Another important purpose is one alluded to by Mr.
Moncure, and that is using the Payroll. In this Payroll thing,
it is exposure to hazard, and this is what the insurance com-
pany is doing, and even though there is no loss, the insurance
company is entitled to a price for their liability on the losses.
This measure of exposure to hazard would be no problem at
all if the people were paying a premium within the present
limitation, but when you get to the point where the general
wage-paying practice exceeds this computation, you don’t
figure the level to seek how many people in the plant rather
than exposure to the hazard. Mvr. Moncure, pointed out that
if you had an industry where the average week was forty
hours a week, a man would produce a Hundred and Sixty
Dollars, at $4.00 per hour and the insurance company would
use a Hundred Dollars of that figure to colleet premium on.
On the other hand, this same risk could have another man who
is handling more work, but only working twenty-five hours,
and the insurance company would use the Hundred Dol-

lars for the twenty-five hours, and you would get
page 8) ] the same premium for the forty hour man as for

the twenty-five hour man, but with the lid on,
vou wind up with some assureds paying premiums less than
they ought to pay, and others paying more. Our proposal is,
and this is countrywide, and we have a score sheet showing
where it is in force — our position is that we produce a
printed Manual rate and allow payrolls going into the rate
system up to a maximum of Three Hundred Dollars. This
does not mean an automatic jump of three times in the
amount of payroll dues. There are relatively few people who
are actually paid Three Hundred Dollars per week, but there
are a great many between the Hundred and Three Hundred
Dollar area, over a Hundred Dollars.

There was some confusion over the Rate Level and actual
Manual Rates. The proposal is an increase of 3.7 per cent in
the Rate Level. That means, as a result of this proposal, the
carriers will be receiving in money 3.7 per cent more. At the
same time, however, the rates otherwise, which have heen
proposed to produce 3.7 per cent premium, have been reduced
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by 6.6 per cent. This is the printed Manual Rate,
page 86 ] the book rate. By using this reduced rate, and ap-

plying against it the payrolls at over a Hundred
Dollars, this will give you the 3.7 per cent premium. If you
did not reduce the rates, it would give you more premium, and
the purpose is not to increase the rates by this. If you com-
pare the Virginia Manual rates today with another State, with
the Three Dundred Dollar payroll limitation, the Virginia
rates would look higher if everything else were equal.

Chairman Catterall: An employer that does not pay any-
body more than a Hundred Dollars per week would get the
six per cent reduction?

A. No, Sir. The way the 6.6 per cent reduction applies, it
has been spread out over all the classifications. There are
some classifications that get 44.8 per cent. We don’t have too
" many of them, and other classes get no reduction at all because
the general wage practice is around the Hundred Dollars or is
the Hundred Dollars.

Q. Take an employer whose rate is not changed, the pre-
mium would remain the same — Let’s take two like that. One
pays a Hundred Dollars a week, and the other Two Hundred
per week to every employee. Would the Hundred Dollar man

get a decrease? ‘
page 87 } A. No.
Q. Will you make an explanation as to when
anybody would get a change?

A. The example I gave of the man whose workers are work-
ing twenty-five hours per weck as against a man whose work-
ers are working forty hours at the same rate of pay, the
twenty-five hour man would be paying less than the forty
hour man. '

Chairman Catterall: Some people would get less?

A. This program is designed not to produce more money in
the overall, but to collect the money on a re-distribution basis.
In other words, some risks will pay more, and they ought to
because they have additional exposure to hazard, and others
less. And we know this to be a fact, and we have had a great
deal of experience because it is in force in all but eight States.
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Mr. Moncure: A
Q. I hand you an exhibit showing which States are in this,
and ask that it be received.

Mr. Elliott: Itis already in as Exhibit No. 5.
page 88 } A. What this shows, as you will see from the ex-
hibit, are the States where the Three Hundred
Dollar rule has been adopted or something comparable to it,
and where the Hundred Dollar limit applies. So, if you look
at the last column to the right, these are the only States that
have the Hundred Dollar rule. There are only eight.

Chairman Catterall: New York is in this column?

A. New York has not filed it. New York’s Insurance De-
partment are planning to go into a study of .it, and examina-
tion.

Chairman Catterall: It sounds reasonable to me. How
about you, Mr. Gray?

Mr. Gray: No. Maybe you can convinece me, Mr. Heitzmann.

Q. Suppose there were two companies, each working forty
hours, they would pay the same premium?

A, Yes.

Q. If your proposal is adopted, and one employer doubles
the payments for his employees how much greater exposure
to hazard does the insurance company have?

A. None.
page 89 } Q. How much more would they pay?
A. Presumably twice the premium.

Q. So every time they give a worker an increase in pay, he
would pay more for insurance?

A. Yes, but you find in an industry a man does not double
his salaries when he has to compete with his associate, and
this program recognizes that there is a general wage paying
practice in industry.

Q. Take me through another illustration. Assume employer
A has three secretaries working for him, and he pays them a
Hundred Dollars per week; and employer B has one general
counsel working for him that he pays Three Hundred Dollars
per week. What is the difference in premium that is paid by
employer A and Employer B under your proposal?

A. Today?
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Q. No, under your proposal.
A. Under our proposal, that would be the same, assuming
they are in the same classification.
Q. Secretaries and general counsel are in the same class?
A. Secretaries are a nonexecutive occupation.
page 90 J Q. In your Manual?
A. Yes.
Q. Which has the greater exposure to risk?
A. You have the three girls exposed to more hazard.
Q. How much total coverage do the three girls have?
A. The policy covers whatever the policy calls for.
Q. The maximum weekly benefit is Thirty-Seven Dollars per
week. What is the coverage exposure?

A. T can’t tell without knowing the losses.

Q. With employer A it could work out Thirty-Seven Dollars,
not only with one mentioned, but he might have to pay out
three times as much?

A. Yes.

Q. But employer B pays out as much?

A. Yes.

Q. Does the employee making Three Hundred Dollars per
week get any additional benefits when he gets a pay
raise?

page 91 1  A. He can, depending upon the kind of injury.
Don’t you have a law that when the man is par-
tially disabled, he gets a percentage of what it was before?
Q. I think the maximum is on that.

A. The point is that he would be making Five Hundred Dol-
lars, and could only make Four Hundred, and he would only
get the maximum, but I know what you are leading up to,
which is a tie-in between the basis on which benefits are paid
under the compensation law, and the basis on which premiums
are collected under a compensation policy. These don’t have
to be the same.

- We know that for insurance purposes we have to get a
package of dollars to pay losses and expense. We can devise
a system by which we can get the package of dollars, based
upon the number of people employed, and another one based
on man hour exposure, and one based on that basis, exclu-
sively. Actuaries are able to do that sort of thing, and say
whether they are reasonable, but we can get the money needed
for the State as a whole by using various premium bases.
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Years ago the weekly payrolls were the basis on
page 92 1 which they wanted to charge the Workmen’s Com-

pensation premiums. The reason was these pay-
rolls, and the other was the exposure time on the job related
to payrolls. We are not saying that this is absolute perfection
because we think it is not. It is a reasonable basis, and we
don’t think it is producing premiums that are excessive.

Mr. Gray:
Q. Do you think it is time to socialize Workmen’s Com-

pensation insurance?
A. No.

Chairman Catterall: How could it be any more socialistic?

Mr. Gray:

Q. Are you making one pay for benefits he will not derive
to have the money to pay for one who is not paying his part?

A. Isn’t that the whole essence of insurance that the fellow
who does not have losses puts money into the pool to take
care of the losses that the others have?

Q. So, the man today with a certain exposure to your in-

surance companies at a Hundred Dollar salary,
page 93 1 if he gave him a pay increase to One Hundred and
Fifty Dollars, his exposure to your company is

not changed? He has the same chance of being insured?

A, Yes.

Q. And the forty hours does not affect it?

A. If he worked for twenty-five hours for a Hundred?

Q. No, he is working for forty hours at a Hundred, and at
a Hundred and Fifty?

A. Yes.

Q. But every time they get an increase, it would change?

A. Yes.

Q. They increased that revenue every time?

A. What happens to the Sixty Dollar clerk who goes to a
Hundred Dollars is - - -

Chairman Catterall: When were these rates of pay put in?
A. The Hundred Dollars was put in in 1946.

Q. When was the maximum put in?
A. Idon’t know.
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Mr. Gray: I don’t know either.

Chairman Catterall: They have been raising
page 94 } them?

A. The payrolls fit into the rates.
Qi( The maximum they can get is Thirty-Seven Dollars per
week?

Mr. Gray: Yes.

Chairman Catterall: So the Hundred Dollars is three times
the Thirty-Seven Dollars; and back in 1947, it was Seventeen
Dollars. So it was six times what you could get. It is not tied
together. What you want to do is to get the man hours.

A. That would be an inadequate basis. We could not get it
from our companies. We could get it from some of them, or
. the industry that keeps their payroll on man hours. This
Three Hundred Dollar rule works, and we have had experience
with them across the country. We have had no problems:
After getting it, we have along with it a transition period.
This is a redistribution of premium, and somebody will pay
more, and some will pay less. We don’t want a great public
relations problem over this, because some would pay more, and

the insurance companies continued this transition
page 95 } problem to take care of these people by limiting

the first year to ten per cent of what they normally
would pay. It is a Hundred Dollars required, and under the
transition program, it does not apply.

Mr. Gray:

Q. Do I understand, if the premium is less than a Hundred
Dollars, he just pays the Ninety-Nine Dollars?

A. Yes. So, for the first two years, the limitation is a ten
per cent increase; and the third year, fifty per cent of the
excess over ten per cent; and thereafter, full premiums.

During this period you will be getting payrolls audited at
Three Hundred Dollars, starting to enter the rates, and the
rates will begin to adjust themselves, and that is the reason
we have gradually worked back to no reduction. We have used
the transition period, and just recently I called upon our Bu-
reau as to the number of transition risks that are involved in
States where the transition period is over, and on Exhibit
No. 5, on Page 19, we show the results of this study, and, as
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vou can see from the exhibit, there are nine States included
and the total number of transition adjustments,
page 96 1 are very, very small. Connecticut, which had for
a three year period One Hundred and Thirty

Thousand Dollars in risks, was the biggest State, and they
had twenty-two hundred and forty transition adjustments and
this was only 1.9 per cent of the total number of risks in the
State who were affected; and in all other States it was less
than one per cent. Most of it under half.

Q. What is that one per cent?

A. The total number of risks affected by the transition pro-
gram out of that total number of risks in the State.

Q. Less than one per cent get an adjustment?

A. Yes.

Q. The rest paid increases?

A. Some paid increases, and some decreases.

Q. How do you determine whether or not a man is entitled
to get a downward adjustment in this transition period?
. A. He keeps records, as he has to do, at One Hundred Dol-
lars, and at Three Hundred Dollars.

Q. During this period he has to keep up records for Three
Hundred Dollars too?

A. We don’t find that any problem at all. If he
page 97 1 has any, the auditor would go in and find any un-
b 'H der the Hundred Dollars, or over the Hundred

ollars.

Q. But in order to take advantage of the transition pro-
gram, he has to keep records at the Hundred Dollars?

A. He has to keep them at both levels.

Q. At both levels?

A. Yes, he does.

Q. He can’t find it if it is not there?

A. You will find that the insurance auditor is on a pretty
good basis with his clients, and when he goes in, he sees
whether it is or is not.

Q. What is the transition test; he must show that the in-
crease is wholly in?

A. The auditor is furnished with two sets of rates, one at a
Hundred Dollars, and one at Three Hundred Dollars.

Q. And his records have to show that?

A. His records have to show one at One Hundred Dollars,
and one at Three Hundred Dollars.



52 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia
Robert D. Heitzmann

Q. And does not it show the change which is effected solely
by this change?
A, Yes.
page 98 ] Q. And someone has to have records, both at a
Hundred Dollars, and Three Hundred Dollars
limitation?

A. Yes. .

Q. So he has to have two sets of figures?

A. The $100 records have to be kept now, and I can assure
you that the Three Hundred Dollars records are no trouble.

Q. Now, again, we had the three girls at a Hundred Dollars
a week, and one general counsel at Three Hundred Dollars a
week ; and both paying the same premium. If the corporation
that had the general counsel now employs a janitor at Thirty
Dollars a week, would the insurance company pay the maxi-
mum per week?

A. Probably not, because he does not have coverage.

Q. But his employer is paying more to justify that?

A. No, not for that particular man.

Q. The employer across the street is paying the same
amount with three secretaries, and this man is paying the

same amount for the counsel and the janitor?
page 99 } A. The janitor is covered for what the law re-
quires.

Q. And the janitor’s employer is paying this same amount,
and he only gets two people covered, while the man across the
streets gets three covered, and this is against all rules?

A. No, there is something wrong with that.

Q. I agree with that. -

A. The second man paid a premium on the payroll of the
janitor at a rate which was different from the rate for the
payroll of the general counsel. Now, if the janitor were in-
jured, I don’t know what the law would prescribe, but he
could not be paid the maximum benefits, but if he had the kind
of injury that required a long medical payment, he would need
the same amount as the general counsel. Your point is that
there are three girls across the street with a Hundred Dollar
per week exposure, and in this case there are only the general
counsel and the janitor; and I say, measuring premium to
hazard, the second man is not paying for protection. Our pro-

gram is not perfect.
page 100 3 Q. I want to eliminate him from the figure, buta -
. Fifty Dollar secretary won’t get the maximum,
although her employer is paying on the maximum?
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A. There is something you are missing. The price of in-
surance does not end at the Manual rate. When you get into
the area of premium discounts and retrospective rating, all of
these modify the charges in the risks, and it applies on the
Three Hundred Dollar risk as well.

Q. What assurance is there that the over-all premium would
be the same? :

A. Every assurance, from what we can determine on a
actuarial basis. We have no other basis to determine that.

Q. Is this going to result in something like the Off Balance
Correction Factor which you have applied last year?

A. No, there will be an adjustment for the effect of the
Three Hundred Dollar rule, as a start to enter the ratemaking,
but the ratemaking system will make some adjustments. The
Rate Level Adjustment Factor will enter it as it goes on, hut
that takes a period of time.

page 101 ] Chairman Catterall: Do any of these exhibits
show that the profits and losses, and by how much
we missed the bull’s eye?

Mr. Moncure:

Q. If you use Mr. Goddard’s memorandum, Page 4 of Ex-
hibit No. 2, over a period of fifteen years the loss ratio shows
that you made too much money, and then the line - - -

A. Mr. Moncure, we have been losing money for four years.

Chairman Catterall: Column 10—it shows that for many
years we shot too high, and then we have been below the bull’s
eye almost ever since.

A. The last year showed that, instead of making the two
and a half per cent profit, we had a loss of four per cent.

Mr. Moncure: The losses in the last two years are plus two
and a half per cent loss over the profit we could make.

Chairman Catterall: You are not making it as a systema-
tic effort towards making more money?

A. No.

Witness stood aside.



54 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia

page 102 ] Mr. Gray: This is going to have a great deal of

effect on some employers, and we think this re-
quires a lot of real thought. We have not been able to com-
plete our thinking on it, and to get the information from the
people on it exactly. Normally, we think about coming here
talking about rates already established, but here you are talk-
ing about applying the rate on three times as much as formerly
applied to it, that is, it used to be One Hundred Dollars, and
now Three Hundred Dollars, and this could have a serious
effect on a number of employers in Virginia, and we have not
had sufficient opportunity to be advised of the nature and
final effect. You will recall when it came up in 1958, there
we;e a number of employers who came to the Commission
and —

Chairman Catterall: Was this proposal made last year?

Mr. Gray: No, in 1958.

Chairman Catterall: We turned it down then?

Mr. Gray: Yes; and you had some employers
page 103 ] here to show you that it would have a drastic
. effect on their payroll, and if they are seriously

asking for this proposal, the proposal should have been put
forth early enough so that the people affected would have the
opportunity to be advised and gather statistics so the Com-
mission can determine what will happen to individual em-
ployers throughout the State. They don’t have the informa-
tion today. _

It is not a question of their needing the money, but a ques-
tion of shifting the premium gathered, regardless of the effect
on Virginia employers. I don’t know or care what effect it
has had on New York or California employers, but we are
talking about Virginia employers, and if they will get a plus
result instead of a minus.

Mr. Taylor, Executive Secretary of the Virginia Manufac-
turers Association, is here, and he would like to make a brief

comment,
page 104 ] Chairman Catterall: We would be glad to hear
him.

Mr. Taylor: The position of Virginia manufacturers is pre-
cisely the same as it was in 1958 with respect to the insurance
wage base. We are in complete agreement with what Judge
Catterall had to say on this subject at the 1958 hearings. To
the greatest degree possible, we want a premium wage base
with the best possible fit, — one which most nearly produces
the exact cost of coverage for each individual. This is a most
important .principle in financing employment security bene-
fits. The insurance wage base for unemployment compensa-
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tion insurance is and has been Three Thousand Dollars an-
nually since its adoption in the '30’s. The whole social security
benefits program rides on an insurance wage base of Four
Thousand, Eight Hundred Dollars, annually. Far more cost
and benefits per person are involved in this program than in
our workmen’s compensation program. The insurance wage
base for workmen’s compensation at One Hundred Dollars per

week, or Five Thousand, Two Hundred Dollars
page 105 ] annually, is higher than either of the other em-

ployment security programs. It provides a gen-
erous, comfortable fit for Virginia’s average weekly wages of
approximately Eighty-Two Dollars.

Those who pay for these programs have fought and bled for
insurance wage bases sufficiently low to produce the most
equitable cost. The extreme liberals come before Congres-
sional committees time after time with the plea that all wages
be taken for employment security benefits. The arguments
advanced by the National Council on Compensation Insurance
for increasing the workmen’s compensation insurance wage
base from Five Thousand, Two Hundred Dollars annually to
Fifteen Thousand, Six Hundred Dollars are based upon the
same logic and reasoning of those who say include all wages
in financing employment security. This is totally unacceptable
to those who pay the bill and is certainly foreign to Virginia’s
sense of equity.

There is a close correlation between the finane-

page 106 ] ing of all employment security programs. The

Commission should bear this in mind. To increase

the insurance wage base for workmen’s compensation from

Five Thousand, Two Hundred Dollars to Fifteen Thousand,

Six Hundred Dollars would surely generate additional pres-

sure to increase the insurance wage base for both unemploy-

ment compensation insurance and social ‘security. The fact

that private enterprise had taken this action would be all the
more telling.

You are aware that a few States have a state monopoly fund
for workmen’s compensation insurance, the same as for un-
employment compensation insurance. Just in passing, I
should like to say that if we had a state-financed workmen’s
compensation insurance program in Virginia, it is highly un-
likely that we would have an insurance wage base of anything
over Six Thousand Dollars annually. A Five Thousand, Two
Hundred Dollar annual insurance wage base would be very
adequate. It should be remembered that Virginia employers

who pay all this bill chose private financing over
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page 107 } state financing — and that this choice in the

future is largely up to them. Now, if Virginia
employers know that an insured wage base of Five Thousand,
Two Hundred Dollars yearly is most equitable for premium
assessments to pay for workmen’s compensation, we believe
their interest should carry the greatest weight. It is up to the
carriers to say what rates are required for the chosen insur-
ance wage base to produce the premium necessary. No amount
of public relations work or phasing in operations would make
such a proposed jump in the insurance wage base acceptable
to us, or endear the carriers to us.

It has been established that New York State has not seen
fit to increase their insurance wage base. This is quite signifi-
cant. The fact that a large majority of States have seen fit
to go along with an increase since 1958 doesn’t mean that
their actions are well founded or even competently considered.
It is a matter of rather general common knowledge that not

more than five or six States have ever had work-
page 108 ] men’s compensation rate filings competently con-

tested by counsel and qualified actuaries. It is,
also, generally known that very few state regulatory agencies
have any depth of knowledge of workmen’s compensation rate-
making. It is clear that there is very little useful guidance to
be had from most of the other States. It is, also, clear that
the National Council pretty much writes the ticket on this
insurance. We have certainly tried to help the Virginia em-
‘ployers and the Commission with this program.

We haven’t yet looked at the most important part of work-
men’s compensation insurance rates — the expense allow-
ance. The numbers here must somehow be reduced if private
financing of this program is to survive. For all the years
we have participated in these hearings, we have talked in
terms of fixing a manual premium designed to produce sixty
per cent for benefits and forty per cent for carriers’ expenses.
As the benefits in this program increase, the expense ratio
should go down, and it must go down. A consistent thirty-

six and two-tenths net premium expense ratio
page 109 ] is indefensible, we helieve.

This coverage is required by law, and the bene-
fits are fixed by law. Acquisition cost should be low for the
carriers, for ninety-five per cent of this insurance coverage
is renewal business. As for safety, claims settlement, and
field supervision — this is primarily confined to those oc-
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cupational fields with substantial exposure to hazards. We
ask the Commission now to prepare to examine every item
of expense in detail next year. We will very shortly put this
in the form of a written request. More than any other in-
terest, we prefer private financing of workmen’s compensa-
tion insurance through employers and private insurance car-
riers. We are much concerned about overall cost of insurance
for this program and especially the expense loadings. We
would like to see a detailed analysis of each item of expense
by carrier and by insurance classification. We must do this
if we are to find ways to reduce expense loadings. It is time

to prepare to study these items now. Our In-
page 110 ] dustrial Commission runs its entire program for

just under two per cent of our total workmen’s
compensation premium. This includes complete claims re-
cord-keeping for all claims, all kinds of statistics, the ad-
judication of all contested claims, all of its travel expenses,
and all of its housing costs, ete.

We want you to help us to carefully go over these expense
l(l)ladings to see where there are possible places to reduce
them.

Mr. Moncure: The filing has been here for quite a while,
and in effect in the other States, and shows that there is a
very small percentage effect. My friends talk about all these
parties that are going to feel the percentage increase, and
that it would be a hundred and thirty per cent.

I would not want this rate hearing held up because of that
particularly with the factor of what the companies lost
in the last four years in Virginia, and I don’t think the

overall effect would be bad, and the premium dol-
page 111 ] lars coming to these companies will not be in-

creased one bit, and the workmen must pay for
these themselves, and if any help comes, it must come from
the Legislature, and I don’t know of any more detailed in-
formation than has been filed by this Burcau. They take
from the Industrial Commission the information on the
rates as filed, and there has been no profit in the two years.
We have not only not gotten our profit, but have lost our
own money, and I ask that the Commission will look over this
filing, and render a decision without delay.

Chairman Catterall: The Commission will take this case
under advisement.



!

58 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia
page 112 }

* * * * *

AT RICHMOND, MAY 10, 1963
APPLICATION OF

WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION INSPECTION
RATING BUREAU OF VIRGINIA
CASE NO. 16311

THE APPLICATION herein was heard on May 7, 1963
and taken under advisement, it appearing that the notice
to the public had been given as required by the order of
April 5, 1963. The applicant was represented by M. Wallace
Moncure, Jr., its counsel, the Virginia Manufacturers Associ-
ation by Frederick T. Gray, its counsel, and the Commission
by its counsel.

NOW ON THIS DAY the Commission having considered

. the filing herein and the evidence is of the opinion and finds

that the proposed revisions of rates, minimum premiums,
rules, regulations and procedures for writing workmen’s
compensation insurance in Virginia on new and renewal
business written to become effective on and after July 1,
1963, filed by the applicant on behalf of its members and
subseribers should be approved for use in this State on and

after said date as filed, except: (a) the proposal of the ap-

plicant to include in said rates an allowance for catastrophe
hazards (traumatic and disease) of 1.3% for all classifications,
the Commission being of the opinion from the evidence that
there should be included in said rates an allowance for
catastrophe hazards (traumatic and disease) of ¥ of 1% for
all classifications; and, (b) the proposal of the applicant to
change the approved formula for determining minimum pre-
miums from 15 times the manual rate for the class plus any
expense constant applicable to 25 times the manual rate for
the class plus any expense constant applicable, the Commis-’
sion being of the opinion that the present formula for deter-
mining minimum premiums is reasonable and produces rates
which are not excessive, inadequate or unfairly diserimina-
tory.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

(1) That the revisions of rates, minimum premiums, rules,
regulations and procedures for writing workmen’s
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page 113 } compensation insurance in this State on new and

renewal business on and after July 1, 1963, as filed
herein by the applicant on behalf of its members and subseri-
bers be, and they hereby are, approved for use in this State
on and after said date except in so far, and in so far only, as
said revisions of rates, minimum premiums, rules, regulations
and procedures provide for: (a) the inclusion therein of an
allowance for catastrophe hazards (traumatic and disease)
in excess of 1% of 1% for all classifications; and, (b) changes
in the present approved formula for determining minimum
premiums;

(2) That the applicant, Workmen’s Compensation Inspec-
tion Rating Bureau of Virginia, file amended revisions of
rates, minimum premiums, rules, regulations and procedures
for writing workmen’s compensation insurance in this State
on new and renewal business written to become effective on
and after July 1, 1963 in the same form as filed by the ap-
plicant in this proceeding except there be eliminated there-
from the provisions in the rates filed in this proceeding which
the Commission has disapproved herein; and,

(3) That this proceeding be dropped from the docket and
the file placed in the file for ended causes. ,

AN ATTESTED copy hereof shall be sent to the applicant,
207 Broad-Grace Arcade, Richmond, Virginia, National Coun-
cil on Compensation Insurance. 200 East 42nd Street, New
York 17, New York, M. Wallace Moncure, Jr., Mutual Build-
ing, Richmond, Virginia, counsel for the applicant, the Indus-
trial Commission of Virginia, Virginia Manufacturers Asso-
ciation, 300 West Main Street, Richmond, Virginia, Frederick
T. Gray, State Planters Bank Building, Richmond, Virginia,
counsel for Virginia Manufacturers Association, and to the
Bureau of Insurance.

A True Copy

Teste: WILLIAM C. YOUNG
Clerk of State Corporation Commission

page 114 ]
* * * * *
Opinion, DILLON, Commissioner :

Each year the Workmen’s Compensation Inspection Rating
Bureau of Virginia, on behalf of its members and subscribers
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(all the insurance companies licensed to write workmen’s
compensation insurance in Virginia), files with the Commis-
sion and requests approval of revised rates, minimum pre-
miums, rules, rating values and regulations for writing work-
men’s compensation insurance in this State. The basic data
used in determining this revision are compiled by the In-
dustrial Commission of Virginia from unit statistical reports
filed by the insurance companies under the approved unit
statistical plan. The proposed revised rates for Virginia are
calculated in accordance with the standard country-wide rate
making procedure as approved by the National Association
of Insurance Commissioners, with one minor exception in

Virginia which is not of importance in this casc.
page 115 1  After the filing is made, the Commission enters

upon an investigation of the rates proposed in the
filing pursuant to Article 4 of Chapter 6 of Title 38.1 of the
Code to determine whether the proposed rates are excessive,
inadequate or unfairly discriminatory, directs that notice of
the filing be given the public and sets a public hearing on the
. filing.

The 1963 filing was made on April 4, 1963 and was set for
hearing on May 7, 1963. It proposed, effective on July 1, 1963,
for new or renewal business, the following changes in the
approved rates and rules for writing workmen’s compensa-
tion insurance:

(1) An average increase, due to experience, of 3.7% in
preg%i;m level from the level which became effective on July
1, 1962;

(2) An allowance for catastrophe hazards of 1.3% for each
classification;

(3) Amendments to Sections VI and XIII of the Virginia
Manual to provide:

(a) The substitution of a $300 per week payroll limitation
in lieu of the present $100 per week; and
(b) For executive officers a maximum indivi-
page 116 } dual payroll of $300 per week in lieu of the pres-
ent $100 per week and a minimum payroll of
$50 per week in lieu of the present $30 per week;

(4) A Transition Program to ease the effect of the proposed
change in the payroll limitation rule; and, : )

(5) Revision of the minimum premium formula. The public
hearing was held on May 7, 1963; and on May 10, the Com-
mission entered an order which: (1) Approved the proposed
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increase of 3.7% in premium level due to experience; (2)
Disapproved the proposed allowance of 1.3% for catastrophe
hazards for each classification and substituted in lieu thereof
an allowance of one-half of 1% ; (3) Approved the proposed
change in payroll limitation from $100 to $300 per week and
the transition program to be used in connection therewith;
and, (4) Disapproved the proposed revision in the minimum
premium formula. Virginia Manufacturers Association has
appealed from the Commission’s decision insofar as it ap-
proved the change in the payroll limitation from $100 per
week to $300 per week.

Rates for workmen’s compensation insurance are fixed by
the Commission on the basis of $100 units of payroll for each
class, and the premium which the insured pays is determined
by applying the class rate prescribed by the manual to each

$100 of payroll of the employer for the class. Thus,
page 117 ] if an employer’s payroll for a class is $235,000

and the rate for the class is 93 cents, the premium
would be 2,350 times 93 cents or $2,185.50. In the absence
of a payroll limitation rule, the total payroll of the employer
is used to determine the premium. This was the method used
in Virginia up to 1946. '

By an order dated July 7, 1946, the Commission adopted
a $100 per week payroll limitation rule which provided:

“If the employer’s books and records are maintained so
as to show separately, by employee and by class of work, the
total remuneration earned by each employee whose average
weekly remuneration for the total time employed during the -
policy period exceeds $100 per week after making any deduc-
tion permitted under the provisions of subdivision ¢ of this
rule, there shall be excluded from the remuneration upon
which the premium for the policy is based that part of the
remuneration of each such employee which is in excess of any
average weekly remuneration of $100 per week. A part of
a week shall be considered as a full week in determining the
average weekly remuneration.”’

The purpose and effect of the $100 payroll limitation rule
were to exclude from the premium base that part of the pay-
roll of each employee which was in excess of an average of
$100 per week if the employer’s books were maintained in
such a manner to show this excess. The $100 payroll limita-
tion approved in 1946 was reasonable at that time, because
it covered the expected total payroll of most employers under
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normal conditions and imposed a reasonable ceiling to take

care of exceptional cases of high-salaried em-
page 118 ] ployees. The function of a payroll limitation

rule is to measure in a reasonable manner the
normal or expected exposure to hazard, risk by risk, of the
insurance companies which write workmen’s compensation
coverage. Whenever it ceases to perform that function due
to changed conditions, the rule should be re-examined in the
light of current conditions and modified to take care of those
conditions. '

Five years ago the Workmen’s Compensation Inspection

" Rating Bureau of Virginia proposed in Case No. 13838 that
the $100 payroll limitation rule be changed so as to increase
the payroll limitation to $300 per week. The Commission
refused to approve the change because: (1) the Commission
was not convinced that the $100 payroll limitation rule did
not at that time under the evidence submitted adequately
measure the exposure to hazard, risk by risk, of the insurance
companies which write workmen’s compensation insurance;

~and, (2) an adequate plan for reduction and redistribution
of the revised rates which must accompany the change was
not submitted.

The Commission is convinced from the evidence in this case
and its knowledge of conditions which exist in the State that
the limitation which the $100 rule places upon the premium
base of workmen’s compensation insurance is too rigid and

_that the rule has ceased to measure in a reasonably accurate
manner the exposure, risk by risk, of the insurance companies

which write workmen’s compensation insurance.
page 119 } Economic conditions in Virginia have changed

substantially since the $100 payroll rule was ap-
proved in 1946. Both wage levels and the cost of workmen'’s
compensation claims have increased substantially. As wage
levels increase, more and more payrolls move out of the
premium base under the $100 limitation with the result that
the. premiums of employers who pay high wages remain
statie while the prémiums of other employers who have dif-
ferent wage-paying practices increase. This results in dis-
crimination and should be corrected by raising the limitation
of the rule to a point where the rule is flexible enough to
permit the premium base (payroll) to reflect these conditions.
In many cases the $100 limitation imposed by the former
rule is reached some time before the end of the employee’s
work week., The result is that the total premium paid is not
proportional to the total exposure to injury during the work
week, The $300 payroll limitation rule approved by the Com-
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mission will permit more payroll to flow into the rating system
and thereby enable the rating system to measure more ac-
curately, among insureds, the hazard of cach risk on the
basis of its own experience. ’

If a payroll limitation rule may be imposed, and no one
has contended that it cannot, revisions in that rule must be
made by the Commission when it becomes apparent that the
limitation in the rule is not realistic. Up to now, Virginia

Manufacturers Association has heen satisfied with
page 120 ] the $100 payroll limitation. In this case it con-

tended that the limit should be no higher
than $61.67, the weekly wage figure upon which the $37
maximum compensation provided by §65-51 of the Code is
based. This proposal is both unreasonable and discriminatory.
The $37 per week maximum compensation under §65-51 does
not represent the insurer’s entire liability. Medical expenses
and death benefits provided by the Act may run into thou-
sands of dollars. Furthermore, under present economic con-
ditions this limitation would have the effect of withdrawing
too much payroll from the rating system with the result that
the expected payroll would not be adequately covered. Some
employers would pay wholly inadequate rates while others
would be paying too much. The $300 limitation rule approved
by the Commission provides a broad base against which
premiums are computed and is fair and equitable to all,
hecause substantially all payroll will be usable for determin-
ing the premiums to be paid.

It is important to bear in mind that the change in payroll
limitation is not introduced for the purpose of obtaining more
premiums overall for workmen’s compensation insurance; its
purpose is to redistribute more equitably among insureds
the premium required to provide the statutory benefits. It
is true that some insureds will pay more premium under the
$300 rule than they would have paid under the $100 rule and
that others will pay less; but it does not follow that the

$300 rule should be disapproved for that reason.
page 121 ] The reason why an insured will pay more under

the $300 rule is that part of his payroll is not
now entering into the premium base under the $100 rule and
that he is getting a free ride at the expense of the employer
who is required to pay on the basis of all or substantially all
of his payroll.

The $300 limitation rule should provide savings in expense
both to the employer and the insurer, Under the $100 rule,
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the employer must keep payroll records so that the excess of
$100 per week can be determined. The evidence indicates that
in some cases this is so expensive that some employers permit
their entire payroll to enter into calculation of their premium
rather than incur the expense of keeping records in this
manner. In addition, the insurance company on the risk must
incur additional auditing expense because its auditors must
determine if the $100 rule is applicable and to what employees.
The Rating Bureau has taken every reasonable precaution
to insure that the over-all premium collected by the insurance
companies will be constant under the $300 rule and that no
over-all increase in premium will result from the substitu-
tion of the $300 rule for the $100 rule. Actual audits have
been made of the payroll records of a very substantial num-
ber of employers on the basis of both the $100 rule and the
$300 rule. These audits have determined that rates can and
should be reduced 6.6% if the $300 rule is used

page 122 } instead of the $100 rule. This 6.6% reduction in
the rates has been spread among the various in-

. dustry classifications on the basis of a country-wide study

which established classification relativities on the basis of
the wage-paying practices in the industries they represent.
This study involved over ten and one-half billions of dollars
of payroll. Because of different wage-paymg practices, some
classifications receive rate reductions in excess of 6.6% while
others whose wage secale is ator below $100 per week receive
less than the 6.6% average reduction. The reductions pro-
posed becanse of the use of the $300 rule range from 44.8%
to zero, but average out at6: 6%.
To further cushion the effect of the change from the $100
, the, $300. rule; the Ratmg Bureau proposed, and the Com-
mission approved, a transition rule. This rule under certain
specified conditiens limits the effect on a risk of the change
from the $100 to the $300 rule for the first two years to a
aximum 1ncrease of 10% in premium; for the third year
BieXe ver-10% will be collected The rule becomes
after the third year.
ision. is of the opinion that the $300 payroll
. Ve 1s re ‘jonable and a realistic addition to the
¢ engation insurance rating system because
stributes more equitably among insureds the
of workmen’s compensation insurance. It
igin.effect in 28 other states. Only 7 states, other
thiam: ’V’m'ganm';J niow mse the $100 payroll limitation rule which
the Commission approved 17 years ago. If the $100 payroll
hmxtatlon was, reasonable in 1946, eertamly, in view of what
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has happened in this country since then, a $300 payroll limita-
tion is reasonable now.

CATTERALL, Chairman, and HOOKER, Commissioner,
coneur.

page 124 } AT RICHMOND, JUNE 10, 1963
APPLICATION OF

WORKMEN'’S COMPENSATION INSPECTION
RATING BUREAU OF VIRGINIA
CASE NO. 16310

For revision of workmen’s compensation rates.

The Virginia Manufacturers Association having filed due
notice of appeal in this case,

IT IS ORDERED that all of the original exhibits filed both
with the application and with the evidence, numbered and
deseribed as follows, be certified and forwarded fo the
Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia to be returned by him
to the Commission with the mandate of the Court.

Ezhibits filed with the application:

1. Schedule of proposed rates, minimum premiums, ete.
Exhibits filed with the evidence:

A. Proof of notice by publication.

1. Revised compensation rates proposed by National Coun-
cil on Compensation Insurance.

2. Revised compensation rates proposed by Bowles, An-
drews & Towne on behalf of Virginia Manufacturers Asso-
ciation.

3. Supplement to Recommendation #3 and Recommenda-
tion #4 by Bowles, Andrews & Towne.

4. Revised Exhibit B.

5. Reply to Bowles, Andrews & Towne Analysis Workmens’
Compensation Rate Filing.
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6. Table of clerical errors in Exhibit #1.
7. Rate level based on no catastrophe allowance with un-
limited catastrophe losses.
END

A True Copy
Teste: WILLIAM C. YOUNG
Clerk of State Corporation Commission
page 125 ] COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
STATE: CORPORATION COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to an order- \entered he
. original exhibits listed therein
Supreme Conrt of Appeals
Cl_erk thereof to tlus

date of thaﬁ

Court of Appeals of
the record in this
. ts; contains all of the
a:ppeale rom was based, to-
ence intkoduced before or con-

ph T. Catterall, Chairman of
on @om.mls 1_1,,- under its seal and at-

Attest: WILLIAM C. YOUNG
‘Clerk
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CERTIFICATE

I, William C. Young, Clerk of the State Corporation Com-
mission, certify that within sixty days after the final order
in this case, Virginia Manufacturers Association, by its at-
torney, Frederick T. Gray, State-Planters Bank Building,
Richmond 19, Virginia, filed with me a notice of appeal
therein which had been delivered to M. Wallace Moncure,
Jr., Mutual Building, Richmond 19, Virginia, opposing coun-
sel to Counsel for the State Corporatlon Commission and
to the Attorney General of Virginia, pursuant to the pro-
visions of Section 13 of Rule 5:1 of the Rules of Supreme
Court of Appeals of Virginia.

Subscribed at Richmond, Virginia, June 21, 1963.
WILLIAM C. YOUNG
Clerk
A Copy — Teste::
H. G. TURNER, Clerk
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